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Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of SH 
Group (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”), I present the annual report of the 
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 
March 2025 (the “Year” or “FY2025”).

The Group is principally engaged in providing electrical and mechanical 
engineering (“E&M engineering”) services in Hong Kong. We focus our efforts 
on the supply, installation and maintenance of mechanical ventilation and  
air-conditioning system (“MVAC system”) and also provide services in relation 
to low voltage electrical system and other E&M systems, including fire services 
system, plumbing and drainage system, in both private and public sectors.

RESULTS

During the Year, the Group recorded a decrease in revenue by approximately 
HK$267.7 million, or 30.6%, from approximately HK$876.2 million for the year 
ended 31 March 2024 (“Last Year” or “FY2024”) to approximately HK$608.5 
million for the Year. The revenue generated by projects of MVAC system 
contributed 73.4% of total revenue of the Group whilst revenue generated by 
projects of low voltage electrical system contributed 26.6% of total revenue of 
the Group.

The Group recorded a profit for the Year of approximately HK$5.4 million (2024: 
loss of HK$15.2 million).

DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend any final dividend for the Year (2024: Nil).

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

MVAC system

During the Year, the Group was awarded 5 projects (2024: 5) in relation to 
MVAC system installation with an aggregate contract sum of approximately 
HK$119.9 million (2024: HK$226.8 million). The awarded projects are not 
limited to residential projects but also involving a MVAC system maintenance and 
replacement project. The new projects, together with the continual progress of 
projects awarded in previous years, would provide the Group with stable revenue 
and earnings in the coming years.
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Chairman’s Statement

Low voltage electrical system

During the Year, the Group was awarded 3 projects in relation to electrical system 
installation with an aggregate contract sum of approximately HK$121.2 million 
(2024: Nil). The revenue contributed from projects of low voltage electrical 
system to the total Group’s revenue was approximately 26.6% (2024: 31.9%). This 
is consistent with the business plan of the Group to maintain a stable revenue and 
profit contribution from projects of the low voltage electrical system.

OUTLOOK

The property market in Hong Kong continues to navigate a complex landscape 
marked by ongoing economic and external environment uncertainties. In this year, 
the challenges faced by the industry remain significant.

Despite these challenges, the Hong Kong Government’s commitment to increasing 
the supply of land and housing remains a vital focus. Recent adjustments to 
demand-side management measures for residential properties have begun to yield 
positive outcomes, with overall transactions in the property market showing signs 
of steady improvement. This shift indicates a potential stabilisation in the market, 
providing a strong indication of potential recovery.

In response to the prevailing market conditions, the Group is actively pursuing 
strategies to enhance its competitive edge. The Group is concentrating on 
targeted projects that align with market needs while implementing rigorous 
cost control measures to optimise the operations. Additionally, the Group is 
looking into opportunities to expand our service capabilities into areas other 
than residential and commercial sectors. This diversification not only opens new 
business opportunities but also positions us to capture new industrial demands in 
the market.

Moreover, the Group is diversifying its portfolio by venturing into various types of 
E&M engineering services, such as fire services systems and plumbing and drainage 
systems. Leveraging the established reputation, client satisfaction, and proven track 
record, the Group is optimistic about achieving steady growth and delivering long-
term value to our shareholders.

Looking ahead, while the property market may continue to face challenges, the 
Group’s proactive approach and commitment to innovation position us well to 
navigate this landscape. The Group remains dedicated to adapting to market 
dynamics and seizing opportunities that arise, ensuring a sustainable future for our 
business.

1 2,120
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Chairman’s Statement

APPRECIATION 

On behalf of the Board, I would like to take this opportunity to thank the 
management team and my fellow staff members for their contribution during 
the Year. I would also like to express my sincere appreciation to our customers, 
suppliers, subcontractors, other business partners and our shareholders for their 
continuous support.

Yu Cheung Choy
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2025
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group is principally engaged in providing E&M engineering services in Hong 
Kong. We provide services in relation to the supply, installation and maintenance 
of MVAC system, and also provide services in relation to low voltage electrical 
system and other E&M systems, including fire services system, plumbing and 
drainage system, in both private and public sectors.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Our revenue decreased by approximately HK$267.7 million, or 30.6%, from 
approximately HK$876.2 million for FY2024 to approximately HK$608.5 million 
for FY2025. Major projects awarded and major projects undertaken in FY2025 
are outlined below.

Projects awarded in FY2025

During FY2025, we were awarded 8 projects (2024: 5) with an aggregate contract 
sum of approximately HK$241.1 million (2024: HK$226.8 million), out of which 3 
projects with an aggregate contract sum of approximately HK$121.2 million were 
related to electrical system installation (2024: nil).

The following table sets forth the particulars of the five largest projects awarded 
in FY2025:

Key scope of work

Type (Residential/
Non-residential)(Note)

Date of award

Original
Contract sum

HK$’million

    

MVAC system installation for a housing development at  
Kai Tak, Kowloon

Residential 16 July 2024 69.8

Electrical system installation for a proposed residential development at  
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Residential 24 March 2025 58.3

Electrical system installation for a proposed commercial re-development  
at Jordan, Kowloon

Non-residential 22 January 2025 33.9

MVAC system installation for a commercial building  
at Shatin, New Territories

Non-residential 5 September 2024 29.8

Electrical system installation for a redevelopment at Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon Non-residential 24 January 2025 29.0

Note: “Residential” refers to projects that involve residential flats while “Non-residential” refers to projects 

that do not involve residential flats.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Major projects undertaken in FY2025

During FY2025, the Group continued to focus its efforts on the supply, installation 
and maintenance of MVAC system and low voltage electrical system. Revenue 
contributed by projects relating to MVAC system and low voltage electrical system 
accounted for approximately 73.4% and 26.6% respectively (2024: 68.1% and 
31.9%).

The following table sets forth the particulars of the five largest projects 
undertaken in FY2025 in terms of revenue contribution:

Key scope of work

Type (Residential/ 
Non-residential)

Date of award

Original
Contract sum

HK$’million

Revenue 
recognised 

during 
FY2025

HK$’million

     

MVAC system installation for a property development at Yuen Long, 
New Territories

Residential 29 April 2022 160.9 97.6

Electrical system installation for a proposed residential development at 
Sham Shui Po, Kowloon

Residential 19 February 2021 294.2 64.1

MVAC system installation for a proposed residential development at Kai 
Tak, Kowloon

Residential 21 December 2021 145.4 53.5

MVAC system installation for a proposed residential development at 
Tseung Kwan O, New Territories

Residential 17 February 2022 125.4 53.4

Electrical system installation for a commercial development at Cheung 
Sha Wan, Kowloon

Non-residential 23 September 2020 88.8 51.2

73.4% 26.6% 68.1%
31.9%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Our revenue decreased by approximately HK$267.7 million, or 30.6%, from 
approximately HK$876.2 million for FY2024 to approximately HK$608.5 million 
for FY2025. Revenue contributed by projects relating to the supply, installation and 
maintenance of MVAC system and low voltage electrical system was approximately 
73.4% and 26.6% respectively (2024: 68.1% and 31.9% respectively).

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our gross profit increased by approximately HK$16.7 million, or 102.5% from 
approximately HK$16.3 million for FY2024 to approximately HK$33.0 million 
for FY2025. Our gross profit margin increased by approximately 3.5 percentage 
points, from approximately 1.9% for FY2024 to approximately 5.4% for FY2025. 
The change was mainly attributable to the increase in revenue and gross profit 
from variation orders with higher margins agreed upon at the conclusion of 
certain projects.

Other income

Other income for FY2025 slightly decreased by approximately HK$0.2 million 
from approximately HK$3.5 million for FY2024 to approximately HK$3.3 million 
for FY2025.

Other gain (loss)

We recorded an other gain of approximately HK$3.4 million for FY2025, which 
was attributable to the fair value gain of financial assets at fair value through profit 
or loss (“FVTPL”), comparing to the other loss of approximately HK$4.5 million 
for FY2024 due to the fair value loss on financial assets at FVTPL.

Net impairment loss recognised under expected credit loss model 

We recognised a net impairment loss under expected credit loss model of 
approximately HK$5.8 million for FY2025 (2024: HK$3.2 million).

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses mainly represented administrative staff costs, 
professional fees and depreciation. The amount slightly decreased from 
approximately HK$27.1 million for FY2024 to approximately HK$26.4 million for 
FY2025.

8 7,620
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Finance costs

Our finance costs represented interest expenses on bank borrowings and lease 
liabilities, with an amount of approximately HK$1.2 million for FY2025 (2024: 
HK$2.2 million). The decrease in finance cost was mainly due to the repayment of 
bank borrowings during the Year.

Income tax (expense) credit

Due to the combined effect of the above factors, we recorded a profit before 
taxation of approximately HK$6.2 million (2024: loss of HK$17.3 million) and an 
income tax expense of approximately HK$0.8 million (2024: income tax credit of 
HK$2.1 million) was recognised as a result for FY2025. The effective tax rate for 
FY2025 was approximately 13.0% (2024: 12.3%).

Profit (loss) attributable to owners of the Company

As a result of the foregoing, we recorded a profit attributable to owners of the 
Company of approximately HK$5.4 million for FY2025 (2024: loss of HK$15.2 
million).

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Capital Structure

As at 31 March 2025, the capital structure of the Group consisted of equity of 
approximately HK$234.3 million (2024: HK$228.9 million). The Group did not 
have any bank borrowing as of 31 March 2025 (2024: HK$35.0 million).

As at 31 March 2025, the issued share capital of the Company was HK$4,000,000 
divided into 400,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each.

Cash position and fund available

During the Year, the Group maintained a healthy liquidity position, with working 
capital being financed by its operating cash flows, bank borrowings and the 
retained profits.

As at 31 March 2025, the Group held bank balance and cash of approximately 
HK$97.5 million (2024: HK$44.6 million).

As at 31 March 2025, the current ratio of the Group was approximately 2.3 times 
(2024: 1.6 times).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Bank Borrowings and Bank Facilities

As at 31 March 2025, the Group did not have any bank borrowings (2024: 
HK$35.0 million). As at 31 March 2025, the Group had a facility agreement 
entered into with a bank with a facility limit of HK$150.0 million (2024: HK$150.0 
million). The Company had made undertakings relating to certain performance 
obligations of the controlling shareholders of the Company, namely Mr. Yu Cheung 
Choy (“Mr. Yu”), who is the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) and an 
executive Director, and Mr. Lau Man Ching (“Mr. Lau”), who is the chief executive 
officer of the Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”) and an executive Director, 
pursuant to the facility agreement including the following: (i) Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau 
undertake to maintain as the largest shareholders of the Company directly or 
indirectly; and (ii) Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau shall remain as the chairman or director of 
the Company. The facility agreement remains effective as at the date of this annual 
report.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 March 2025, the Group did not have any bank borrowing and its gearing 
ratio was nil. As at 31 March 2024, the Group’s gearing ratio was approximately 
15.3%, calculated as the bank borrowings divided by the total equity as at the end 
of the respective years and multiplied by 100%.

NET CURRENT ASSETS

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had net current assets of approximately 
HK$180.0 million (2024: HK$172.2 million).

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its 
compliance with covenants in relation to banking facility agreements, so as to 
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines 
of funding from the banks to meet its liquidity requirements. The Board is not 
aware of any liquidity issue that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to 
continue as a going concern.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

The Group’s capital expenditures for FY2025 amounted to approximately HK$0.3 
million (2024: HK$0.3 million), which was incurred for the purchase of property 
and equipment.

3,500

1 5,000  
1 5,000
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s revenue-generating activities were transacted in Hong Kong Dollar, 
which is the functional currency of the respective group companies. The Board 
considers that the Group was not exposed to significant foreign exchange risk, and 
had not entered into any financial instrument for hedging. The Board will review 
the Group’s foreign exchange risk and exposure from time to time and will apply 
hedging where necessary.

PERFORMANCE GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENT LIABILITY

As at 31 March 2025, performance guarantees of approximately HK$155.2 million 
(2024: HK$145.2 million) were given by banks in favour of the Group’s customers 
as security for the due performance and observance of the Group’s obligations 
under the contracts entered into between the Group and its customers. If 
the Group fails to provide satisfactory performance to its customers to whom 
performance guarantees have been given, such customers may demand the 
banks to pay to them the sum or sum stipulated in such demand. The Group will 
become liable to compensate such banks accordingly. The performance guarantees 
will be released upon completion of the contracts work.

The Group had no contingent liability as at 31 March 2025 and 2024.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2025, the Group’s leasehold land and buildings of approximately 
HK$15.7 million (2024: HK$16.4 million) were pledged with a bank to secure the 
banking facilities including performance guarantees issued by the bank.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2025, the Group did not have any capital commitments contracted 
but not provided for (2024: HK$0.1 million).

1 5,520 1 4,520

1,570
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYEES, TRAINING AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had a total of 139 employees (2024: 202). The 
remuneration offered to employees generally includes salaries, medical benefits 
and bonus. In general, the Group determines salaries of its employees based on 
each employee’s qualification, position and seniority. The Group provides training 
to its employees according to the work requirements.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The Group did not have any material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, 
associates and joint ventures during FY2025.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

The Group did not have any significant investments held as at 31 March 2025.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group did not have plans for material investments or capital assets as at 31 
March 2025.

139 202
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate governance standard 
and procedures to ensure the integrity, transparency and quality of disclosure in 
order to enhance value for its shareholders (the “Shareholders”).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company aims to achieve high standard of corporate governance which 
is crucial to the development of the Group and safeguard the interests of the 
Shareholders.

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate 
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Part 2 of Appendix C1 to 
the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock 
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) as its own code of 
corporate governance.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company had complied, to the extent 
applicable and permissible, with all the code provisions set out in the CG Code 
during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by 
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix C3 to 
the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the 
Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all the Directors have 
confirmed that they had complied with the required standards set out in the 
Model Code throughout the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company, and is 
responsible for setting up the overall strategy as well as reviewing the operation 
and financial performance of the Group. The Board reserved for its decision 
or consideration matters covering overall Group strategy, major acquisitions 
and disposals, annual budgets, annual and interim results, recommendations on 
Directors’ appointment or re-appointment, approval of major capital transactions 
and other significant operational and financial matters. The management was 
delegated the authority and responsibility by the Board for the daily management 
of the Group. In addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities 
to the Board committees. Further details of these committees are set out in this 
report.

C1

C3
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board currently consists of seven Directors including three executive 
Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent non-executive 
Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Cheung Choy (Chairman)
Mr. Lau Man Ching (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Yu Ho Chi

Non-executive Director

Ms. Yu Tsz Wai (appointed on 11 December 2024)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Yim Nam
Mr. Lee Wing Kee
Dr. Law Man Wah

Save for (i) Mr. Yu Cheung Choy is the father of Mr. Yu Ho Chi and Ms. Yu Tsz 
Wai, and (ii) Mr. Yu Cheung Choy and Mr. Lau Man Ching entered into the acting-
in-concert confirmation on 7 July 2016, whereby they confirmed that, among 
other things, since 21 July 2004, they have been actively cooperating with one 
another and acting in concert, with an aim to achieving consensus and concerted 
action on all operating and financing decisions and major affairs relating to each 
member company within the Group; the Board members have no financial, 
business, family or other material/relevant relationships with each other. Such 
balanced Board composition is formed to ensure strong independence exists 
across the Board. The composition of the Board reflects the balanced skills and 
experience for effective leadership. The biographical information of the Directors 
are set out on pages 34 to 39 under the section headed “Biographical Details of 
Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

Ms. Yu Tsz Wai, who was appointed as non-executive Director on 11 December 
2024, obtained legal advice referred to in Rule 3.09D of Listing Rules on 11 
December 2024. She confirmed that she understood her obligations as a 
Director.

Directors’ Training

According to the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all directors should 
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their 
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the board remains 
informed and relevant.

All Directors had participated in continuous professional development and 
provided to the Company a record of training they received for the Year.

 

(i)
(ii)

34 39

3.09D

C.1.4
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The individual training record of each Director received for the Year is 
summarised below:

Training Received
(Notes)

Name of Directors

   

Mr. Yu Cheung Choy (Chairman) 1
Mr. Lau Man Ching (Chief Executive Officer) 1
Mr. Yu Ho Chi 1, 2
Ms. Yu Tsz Wai 1, 2
Mr. Lam Yim Nam 1
Mr. Lee Wing Kee 1
Dr. Law Man Wah 1, 2

Notes:

1. Reading articles, training materials and updates as regards legal and regulatory changes and matters of 

relevance to the Directors in the discharge of their duties.

2. Attending training courses/seminars/conferences/workshops on topics relating to the directors’ duties 

and the Listing Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code requires that the responsibilities between 
the chairman and the chief executive officer should be segregated.

The two positions are held separately by two individuals to ensure their respective 
independence, accountability and responsibility. Mr. Yu Cheung Choy is the 
Chairman and Mr. Lau Man Ching is the Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Yu is in 
charge of the management of the Board and strategic planning of the Group. Mr. 
Lau is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group’s business. The 
Company considered that the division of responsibilities between the Chairman 
and Chief Executive Officer is clearly established.

Code provision C.2.7 of the CG Code requires that the chairman should at least 
annually holds meetings with the independent non-executive Directors without 
the presence of other Directors. During the Year, the Chairman had a meeting 
with the independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other 
Directors.

1. 

2. 

C.2.1

C.2.7
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Independent Non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific term and 
they are also subject to the retirement by rotation at least once every three years 
in accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of 
Association”).

The three independent non-executive Directors are persons of high caliber, with 
academic and professional qualifications in the fields of construction, accounting 
and finance. With their experience gained from various sectors, they provide 
strong support towards the effective discharge of the duties and responsibilities 
of the Board. Each independent non-executive Director gave a confirmation of 
his independence to the Company, and the Company considered each of them is 
independent under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Functions of the Board and Management

The Board is primarily responsible for establishing the overall strategies of the 
Group, setting objectives and business development plans, assuming responsibility 
of corporate governance and monitoring the performance of senior management.

The management, under the leadership of the executive Directors, is responsible 
for implementing the strategies and plans established by the Board and reporting 
on the Group’s operations to the Board on a regular basis to ensure effective 
performance of the Board’s responsibilities.

All the Directors have separate and independent access to the Group’s senior 
management to fulfill their duties. Independent professional advice can be sought 
to assist the relevant Directors to discharge their duties at the Group’s expense 
upon their request. All the Directors have been provided with monthly updates 
on the Group’s performance and financial position to enable the Board as a whole 
and each Director to discharge their duties.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted on 6 December 2016 a board diversity policy (the “Board 
Diversity Policy”), a summary of which is set out as follows:

— A Board composed of appropriately qualified people with a broad range 
of experience relevant to the business is important to effective corporate 
governance and sustained commercial success of the Company;

— The Company endeavours to ensure that its Board has the appropriate 
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives that are required 
to support the execution of its business strategy and in order for the 
Board to be effective;

3.13
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— The Company is committed to maintaining a Board with an appropriate 
level of female members, which shall be no less than one by 31 December 
2024; and

— Selection of candidates for Board appointments will be based on merit and 
candidates will be considered against a range of objective criteria, including 
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, 
ethnicity, professional experience, skills and knowledge, with due regard 
for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised six male Directors 
and one female Director. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits 
of diversity in the Board and is committed to enhancing quality of opportunity 
in all aspects of its business. The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity 
through the consideration against a range of objective criteria, including but not 
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional 
experience, skills and knowledge. As at the date of this report, the male to female 
gender ratio in the Company’s workforce (including executive Directors and 
senior management) was 11.6 : 1.

The Board delegated certain duties under the Board Diversity Policy to the 
nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”). The 
Nomination Committee will discuss and review the necessity to set measurable 
objectives for implementing the Board Diversity Policy from time to time.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the Board 
Diversity Policy and considered that it had been implemented effectively during 
the Year.

MECHANISM TO ENSURE INDEPENDENT VIEWS AND INPUTS TO 
THE BOARD

To ensure that independent views and input are available to the Board, the 
following mechanism has been established by the Board:

— Where appropriate, the Company shall arrange suitable and sufficient 
resources to cover any matters relating to the obtaining of an independent 
opinion by the Board, including but not limited to the engagement of a 
legal team or any other professionals for such purpose;

— Where appropriate, the Directors shall give at least three working 
days’ notice to the company secretary of the Company (the “Company 
Secretary”) to obtain an independent opinion, including but not limited to 
engaging a professional team for such purpose;
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— The Board is required to review its structure, size, composition (including 
skills, knowledge and experience) and diversity policy at least annually 
to ensure that the composition of the Board complies with the relevant 
requirements of the Listing Rules, including maintaining a balanced 
mix of executive and non-executive directors (including independent 
non-executive directors) so that the Board has a strong element of 
independence which can effectively exercise independent judgment; and

— If all the independent non-executive Director have served on the Board 
for more than nine years, the Company should consider to appoint a new 
independent non-executive Director at the forthcoming annual general 
meeting.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the said 
mechanism during the Year and considered that it has been operating effectively 
and will continue to monitor its implementation and effectiveness on an annual 
basis.

Board Meetings

The Board intends to hold board meetings regularly at least four times a year at 
approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of not less than 14 days will be given 
for all regular board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity to 
attend and propose matters to be discussed in the meeting agenda. Agendas and 
accompanying papers shall be sent not less than 3 days before the date of Board 
meeting to ensure that the Directors are given sufficient time to review the 
documents.

During the Year, the Board held four meetings. All Directors are given an 
opportunity to include any matter in the agenda for regular Board meetings and 
are given sufficient time to review the documents and information to be discussed 
in Board meetings in advance. The attendance record of each Director is set out 
below:

Number of  
attendance

Name of Directors
   

Executive Directors
Mr. Yu Cheung Choy (Chairman) 4/4
Mr. Lau Man Ching (Chief Executive Officer) 4/4
Mr. Yu Ho Chi 4/4

Non-executive Director
Ms. Yu Tsz Wai (Note) 1/1

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lam Yim Nam 4/4
Mr. Lee Wing Kee 4/4
Dr. Law Man Wah 4/4

Note:

Ms. Yu Tsz Wai was appointed as non-executive Director on 11 December 2024. During the period from her 

appointment until 31 March 2025, one Board meeting was held.
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Board minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection 
by the Directors. Every Board member is entitled to have access to Board papers 
and related materials and has unrestricted access to the advice and services of the 
Company Secretary, and has the liberty to seek external professional advice if so 
required.

Appropriate insurance cover has been arranged by the Company in respect of 
relevant actions against its Directors.

General Meetings

During the Year, one general meeting of the Company, being the 2024 annual 
general meeting of the Company, was held on 29 August 2024.

Number of  
attendance

Name of Directors
   

Executive Directors
Mr. Yu Cheung Choy (Chairman) 1/1
Mr. Lau Man Ching (Chief Executive Officer) 1/1
Mr. Yu Ho Chi 1/1

Non-executive Director
Ms. Yu Tsz Wai (Note) N/A 

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lam Yim Nam 1/1
Mr. Lee Wing Kee 1/1
Dr. Law Man Wah 1/1

Note:

Ms. Yu Tsz Wai was appointed as non-executive Director on 11 December 2024. During the period from her 

appointment until 31 March 2025, no general meeting was held.

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with Shareholders 
and in particular, uses annual general meeting(s) or other general meetings to 
communicate with them and encourage their participation.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written terms of 
reference on 6 December 2016 and currently consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lee Wing Kee (as chairman), Mr. Lam Yim Nam 
and Dr. Law Man Wah, and one non-executive Director, Ms. Yu Tsz Wai. The 
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee is currently made available on 
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are aligned with the relevant 
code provisions set out in the CG Code.

The primary duties and roles of the Nomination Committee include, but are not 
limited to, (a) reviewing the structure, size and composition and diversity (including 
the skills, knowledge, educational background, experience and diversity) of the 
Board at least annually, assisting the Board in maintaining a board skills matrix, and 
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement 
the Company’s corporate strategy; (b) identifying individuals suitably qualified to 
become members of the Board and selecting or making recommendations to the 
Board in the selection of individuals nominated for directorships; (c) assessing the 
independence of independent non-executive Directors; and (d) supporting the 
Company’s regular evaluation of the Board’s performance.

To ensure changes to the Board composition can be managed without undue 
disruption, there should be a formal, considered and transparent procedure for 
selection, appointment and re-appointment of Directors, as well as plans in place 
for orderly succession (if considered necessary), including periodical review of 
such plans. The appointment of a new Director (to be an additional Director or 
fill a casual vacancy as and when it arises) or any re-appointment of Directors is 
a matter for decision by the Board upon the recommendation of the proposed 
candidate by the Nomination Committee.

The criteria to be applied in considering whether a candidate is qualified shall 
be his or her ability to devote sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the 
Company and contribute to the diversity of the Board as well as the effective 
carrying out by the Board of the responsibilities which, in particular, are set out as 
follows:

(a) participating in Board meetings to bring an independent judgement on 
issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key 
appointments and standards of conducts;

(b) taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

(a)

(b)

(c)
(d)

(a) 

(b) 
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(c) serving on the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”), 
the remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration 
Committee”) and the Nomination Committee (in the case of candidate 
for non-executive Director) and other relevant Board committees, if 
invited;

(d) bringing a range of business and financial experience to the Board, giving 
the Board and any committee on which he or she serves the benefit of 
his or her skills, expertise, and varied backgrounds and qualifications and 
diversity through attendance and participation in the Board/committee 
meetings;

(e) scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving agreed corporate 
goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of performance;

(f) ensuring the committees on which he or she serves to perform their 
powers and functions conferred on them by the Board; and

(g) conforming to any requirement, direction and regulation that may from 
time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the constitutional 
documents of the Company or imposed by legislation or the Listing Rules, 
where appropriate.

If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent non-executive 
Director, his or her independence shall be assessed in accordance with, among 
other things, the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, subject to any 
amendments as may be made by the Stock Exchange from time to time. Where 
applicable, the totality of the candidate’s education, qualifications and experience 
shall also be evaluated to consider whether he or she has the appropriate 
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management 
expertise for filling the office of an independent non-executive Director with such 
qualifications or expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

(c) 

(d) 

(e) 

(f) 

(g) 

3.13

3.10(2)
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During the Year, the Nomination Committee held two meetings.

Number of  
attendance

Name of Members
   

Mr. Lee Wing Kee (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. Lam Yim Nam 2/2
Dr. Law Man Wah 2/2
Ms. Yu Tsz Wai (Note) N/A 

Note:

Ms. Yu Tsz Wai was appointed as a non-executive Director on 11 December 2024. During the period from her 

appointment until 31 March 2025, no Nomination Committee meeting was held.

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination Committee during the 
Year is listed below:

• assessing the independence of the independent non-executive Directors;

• considering the re-election of Directors;

• reviewing the structure, size and diversity of the Board;

• considering the nomination of a female candidate to join the Board as non-
executive Director; and 

• considering the appointment of a female Director as a member of the 
Nomination Committee.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with written terms of 
reference on 6 December 2016 and currently consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Yim Nam (as chairman), Mr. Lee Wing Kee 
and Dr. Law Man Wah. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee 
is currently made available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s 
website.

Terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are aligned with the relevant 
code provisions set out in the CG Code.

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 
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The primary duties and roles of the Remuneration Committee include, but not 
limited to, (a) making recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure 
for the remuneration of all Directors and senior management personnel and on 
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing the policy 
on such remuneration; (b) making recommendations to the Board on the specific 
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior management; 
(c) reviewing and approving management’s remuneration proposals with reference 
to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; and (d) making recommendations 
to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive Directors.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings.

Number of  
attendance

Name of Members
   

Mr. Lam Yim Nam (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. Lee Wing Kee 2/2
Dr. Law Man Wah 2/2

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the 
Year is listed below:

• reviewing the remuneration adjustment proposal and the bonus proposal 
for the executive Directors and senior management for the Year;

• considering the salary review proposal for Directors and senior 
management for the financial year ending 31 March 2026; and

• considering the remuneration package for the proposed non-executive 
Director and making recommendation to the Board for approval.

The emoluments payable to Directors and senior management depend on their 
respective contractual terms under the employment agreements, if any, and is 
fixed by the Board with reference to the recommendation of the Remuneration 
Committee, the performance of the Group and the prevailing market conditions. 
Details of the remuneration of the Directors and senior management are set out 
in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

(a)

(b)

(c)
(d)

• 

• 

• 

6
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Senior Management’s Remuneration

Senior management’s remuneration of the Group for the Year falls within the 
following bands:

Number of  
individuals

   

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 1,500,000 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 2,000,000 1

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee with written terms of reference 
on 6 December 2016 and currently consists of three independent non-executive 
Directors, namely Dr. Law Man Wah (as chairman), Mr. Lam Yim Nam and Mr. 
Lee Wing Kee. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is currently made 
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee are aligned with the relevant code 
provisions set out in the CG Code.

The primary duties and roles of the Audit Committee include, but not limited to, 
(a) making recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment 
and removal of the external auditor, approving the remuneration and terms 
of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of its resignation or 
dismissal; (b) monitoring integrity of financial statements and annual report and 
accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and 
reviewing significant financial reporting judgements contained in them; and (c) 
reviewing the financial controls, risk management and internal control systems of 
the Group.

The Audit Committee meets the external auditor regularly to discuss any area 
of concern during the audit. The Audit Committee shall review the interim and 
annual reports before submission to the Board. The Audit Committee focuses 
not only on the impact of the changes in accounting policies and practices but 
also on the compliance with accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the legal 
requirements in the review of the Company’s interim and annual reports.

(a)

(b)

(c)
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During the Year, the Audit Committee held two meetings.

Number of  
attendance

Name of Members
   

Dr. Law Man Wah (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. Lam Yim Nam 2/2
Mr. Lee Wing Kee 2/2

In addition to the Audit Committee meetings, the Audit Committee also dealt 
with matters by way of circulation during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee during the Year is 
listed below:

• reviewed the Group’s annual financial statements for the year ended  
31 March 2024 and interim financial statements for the six months ended 
30 September 2024 and the related results announcements, documents 
and other matters or issues raised by the external auditor;

• reviewed the terms of engagement of the external auditor;

• recommended to the Board, for the approval by the Shareholders, of the 
re-appointment of the auditor of the Company; and

• discussed and confirmed with the management the effectiveness of the 
Group’s financial reporting process, risk management and internal control 
systems.

The Audit Committee noted the existing risk management and internal control 
systems of the Group and also noted that review of the same will be carried out 
annually.

The accounts for the Year were audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu whose 
term of office will expire upon the conclusion of the forthcoming annual 
general meeting of the Company (the “2025 AGM”). The Audit Committee has 
recommended to the Board the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as 
auditor of the Company at the 2025 AGM.

• 

• 

• 

• 

•

•
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The corporate governance functions are performed by the Board.

The corporate governance functions are to develop and review the Company’s 
policies and practices on corporate governance to comply with the CG Code and 
other legal or regulatory requirements, to oversee the Company’s orientation 
program for new Director, to review and monitor the training and continuous 
professional development of Directors, to develop, review and monitor the code 
of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors, 
and to review the Company’s disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the Year, the Board had reviewed the training and continuous professional 
development of Directors, the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and the 
Company’s disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the Year, the remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s auditor is set 
out below:

Fee paid/payable
Services rendered

HK$’000

   

Audit services
– Audit of consolidated financial statements – 1,488
– Review of condensed consolidated  

financial statements
– 

262
   

1,750
Non-audit services* * 227
   

Total: 1,977
   

* The non-audit services mainly include tax compliance services, internal controls review and other 

advisory services.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engaged an external professional company secretarial services 
provider, Uni-1 Corporate Services Limited (“Uni-1”), to provide compliance 
and full range of company secretarial services to the Group in order to assist the 
Group to cope with the changing regulatory environment and to suit different 
commercial needs.

* 
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Mr. Tse Kam Fai (“Mr. Tse”), the representative of Uni-1, was appointed as the 
named Company Secretary.

Mr. Lau Man Ching, an executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer, is the 
primary point of contact at the Company for the Company Secretary.

According to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Tse has taken 
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders is 
essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the 
Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company also recognizes 
the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, 
which will enable the Shareholders and investors to make the best investment 
decisions. The Company has adopted its shareholders’ communication policy 
(the “Shareholders’ Communication Policy”) to ensure that Shareholders’ 
views and concerns are appropriately addressed. The Company endeavours to 
maintain an on-going dialogue with the Shareholders and in particular, through 
the Company’s financial reports (interim and annual reports), annual general 
meetings and other general meetings that may be convened, as well as by making 
available all the disclosures submitted to the Stock Exchange and corporate 
communications on the Stock Exchange’s website at http://www.hkexnews.hk and 
the Company’s website at http://www.shunhingeng.com. The general meetings 
of the Company provide a platform for communication between the Board and 
the Shareholders. The chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the Audit 
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee or, 
in their absence, other members of the respective committees, will be available 
to answer Shareholders’ questions at general meetings. The external auditor of 
the Company will also be invited to attend the annual general meetings of the 
Company to answer questions about the conduct of audit, the preparation and 
content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website, where 
information and updates on the Company’s financial information, corporate 
governance practices, biographical information of the Board members and 
other information are available for public access. Media interviews are available 
on a regular basis in order to facilitate communication between the Company, 
Shareholders and the investment community. Shareholders and the investment 
community may, at any time, direct questions, request for publicly available 
information and provide comments and suggestions to the Directors or 
management of the Group. Such questions, requests and comments can be 
addressed to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor Investor 
Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong.

3.29

  
http://www.hkexnews.hk   
http://www.shunhingeng.com 

慤 16 17
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The Board has reviewed the Shareholders’ Communication Policy and considered 
that it has been effectively implemented during the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for communication 
between the Shareholders and the Board. An annual general meeting of the 
Company shall be held in each year and at the place as may be determined by the 
Board. Each general meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be called 
an extraordinary general meeting.

Shareholders to convene an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one or more 
Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general 
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to 
the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary general meeting 
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such 
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit 
of such requisition. The aforesaid written requisition should be deposited to the 
Board or the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in 
Hong Kong at Units 603-606, 6/F, Tower I, Cheung Sha Wan Plaza, 833 Cheung 
Sha Wan Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene 
such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same 
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result 
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the 
Company.

Putting enquiries by Shareholders to the Board

Shareholder(s) may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board 
in writing through the Company Secretary by post to Units 603-606, 6/F, Tower I, 
Cheung Sha Wan Plaza, 833 Cheung Sha Wan Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong, or via 
email at the contact information as provided on the website of the Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals by Shareholders at general meeting

Save for the procedures for the Shareholders to convene an extraordinary 
general meeting, there are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose 
new resolutions at the general meetings under the Articles of Association 
or the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands, as amended, modified and 
supplemented. Shareholders may follow the procedures set out above to convene 
an extraordinary general meeting for any business specified in such written 
requisition. The written requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and 
must be signed by the relevant Shareholder(s) and deposited to the Board or the 
Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at 
Units 603-606, 6/F, Tower I, Cheung Sha Wan Plaza, 833 Cheung Sha Wan Road, 
Kowloon, Hong Kong.

58

833
6 603-606

833 6 603-606

833
6 603-606
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VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders at a 
general meeting must be taken by poll except where the chairman, in good faith, 
decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a procedural or administrative 
matter to be voted on by a show of hands. As such, all the resolutions to be set 
out in the notice of the 2025 AGM will be voted by poll.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular communication and 
reasonable disclosure of information to the Shareholders.

Information of the Company is disseminated to the Shareholders in the following 
manners:

• delivery of annual and interim reports to Shareholders, if required;

• publication of announcements on the annual and interim results on 
the Stock Exchange’s website, and issue of other announcements and 
shareholders’ circulars in accordance with the continuing disclosure 
obligations under the Listing Rules; and

• general meeting of the Company is also an effective communication 
channel between the Board and Shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group’s consolidated 
financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the 
financial position of the Group and of the financial performance and cash flows 
of the Group for that year. In preparing the consolidated financial statements for 
the Year, the Board has selected suitable accounting policies and applied them 
consistently; made judgements and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable 
and prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps to 
safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other 
irregularities.

13.39(4)

• 

• 

• 

 



2024-25 31

Corporate Governance Report

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the Group has 
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable 
future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis 
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management and 
internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems are 
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business 
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against 
material misstatement or loss.

The Board has delegated its responsibilities (with relevant authorities) of risk 
management and internal control to the Audit Committee, who oversees 
management in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk 
management and internal control systems, and management has provided a 
confirmation to the Audit Committee and the Board on the effectiveness of these 
systems for the Year.

Risk management

The Company has already reviewed its risk management framework and processes 
and has implemented relevant measures resulting from this exercise that aim to 
enhance its framework and processes. In particular, the Company has developed, 
approved and implemented a risk management system, which is defined and 
supported by its endorsed risk management policy. The terms of reference of the 
Audit Committee has included its responsibility for an effective system of internal 
control and risk management.

The Company’s methodology for its risk assessment comprises risk identification, 
risk assessment, risk response, and risk monitoring and reporting. These processes 
are performed at least once a year to address changes in the Group’s business 
environment.

Business continuity plan

As an integral part of risk management, the Company has formulated and 
documented a Business Continuity Plan (“BCP”), which is reviewed regularly and 
updated from time to time whenever the Board thinks fit. The BCP enables senior 
management to preserve stakeholder value in the event of a crisis/incident by 
responding promptly to the situation and resuming the Group’s business functions 
to normal situation as quickly and efficiently as possible.
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Internal control measures

The internal control system of the Group covers its major business aspects such 
as revenue management, expenditure management, human resources and payroll, 
cash and treasury management, financial reporting, compliance and information 
technology. The internal control measures are supervised by management team 
including executive Directors. The management team is responsible to identify 
risks and internal control deficiencies, evaluate the internal control system of 
the Group from time to time and implementing additional control measures, 
if necessary, to improve the internal control system. Results of the internal 
assessments would be reported to the Audit Committee, which is responsible to 
review the financial information and supervise the financial reporting system and 
internal controls system of the Group.

Internal audit function

The Board conducted an annual review on the effectiveness of risk management 
and internal control systems, covering all material controls such as financial, 
operational and compliance controls. In addition, the Board has appointed an 
international accountancy firm to review the internal control systems of the 
Group on an on-going basis which covers all major operations of the Group. The 
Board considered that the risk management and internal control systems of the 
Company for the Year were effective and adequate.

The Company does not have an internal audit department. The Board has 
reviewed the need for an internal audit function and is of the view that in light 
of the size, nature and complexity of the business of the Group, as opposed to 
diverting resources to establish a separate internal audit department, it would be 
more cost effective to appoint external independent professionals to perform 
independent review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management 
and internal control systems of the Group. Nevertheless, the Board will continue 
to review at least annually the need for an internal audit department.

Accounting and financial reporting functions

The Board conducted a review of the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications 
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting 
and financial reporting functions for the Year, and considered the above resource 
components to be adequate.



2024-25 33

Corporate Governance Report

Handling and dissemination of inside information

The Group regulates the handling and dissemination of inside information 
according to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” published by 
the Securities and Futures Commission to ensure inside information remains 
confidential until the disclosure of such information is appropriately approved, and 
the dissemination of such information is efficiently and consistently made. The 
Company regularly reminds the Directors and employees about due compliance 
with all policies regarding the inside information. Also, the Company keeps 
Directors, senior management and employees appraised of the latest regulatory 
updates. The Company shall prepare or update appropriate guidelines or policies 
to ensure the compliance with regulatory requirements.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between meeting Shareholders’ 
expectations and prudent capital management with a sustainable dividend policy. 
The Company’s dividend policy aims to allow Shareholders to participate in the 
Company’s profit and for the Company to retain adequate reserves for the 
Group’s future growth. In proposing any dividend payout, the Company would 
consider various factors including but not limited to the Group’s overall results 
of operation, financial condition, expected working capital requirements, capital 
expenditure requirements, liquidity position, future expansions plans, the amount 
of retained profits and distributable reserves of the Company, general economic 
conditions, business cycle of the Group’s business, other internal or external 
factors that may have an impact on the business or financial performance and 
position of the Group and any other factors that the Board deems relevant.

Any declaration and payment of the dividends by the Company will be subject 
to any restrictions under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands, the Articles 
of Association, the Listing Rules and any other applicable laws and regulations. 
The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend distribution ratio. The 
Company’s dividend distribution record in the past may not be used as a reference 
or basis to determine the level of dividends that may be declared or paid by the 
Company in the future. The dividend policy shall in no way constitute a legally 
binding commitment by the Group in respect of its future dividend and/or in no 
way obligate the Group to declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The amended and restated Articles of Association was adopted by a special 
resolution passed by the Shareholders at the 2022 annual general meeting of 
the Company held on 1 September 2022 and is available on the websites of the 
Company and the Stock Exchange. During the Year, there was no change in the 
constitutional documents of the Company.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Cheung Choy ( ), aged 61, is the Chairman and an executive 
Director. He is also the director of all subsidiaries of the Company. As the founder 
of the Group, he became a controlling shareholder of Golden Light Engineering 
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in March 1987 
and established Shun Hing E & M Engineering Limited (“Shun Hing HK”), an 
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in August 1987. He is primarily 
responsible for leading the overall development, business strategies and expansion 
of the Group. Mr. Yu is a director of Prosperously Legend Limited (“Prosperously 
Legend”), which is a substantial Shareholder within the meaning of Part XV of the 
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”) 
and the controlling Shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules).

Mr. Yu obtained a bachelor degree of engineering (building service management) 
with honours from Washington InterContinental University in the United States 
through distance learning in March 2004.

Mr. Yu has over 30 years of experience in E&M engineering services industry. His 
experience includes project management, supervision and execution for various 
E&M engineering services projects.

Mr. Yu is the father of Mr. Yu Ho Chi, an executive Director, and Ms. Yu Tsz Wai, a 
non-executive Director.

Mr. Lau Man Ching ( ), aged 59, is the Chief Executive Officer and an 
executive Director. He is also the director of all subsidiaries of the Company. He 
joined the Group and became the sales and marketing manager of Shun Hing HK 
in October 1995. He then became the director of Shun Hing HK in February 
2000. He is primarily responsible for directing the overall management and 
business operations of the Group. Mr. Lau is a director of Simply Grace Limited 
(“Simply Grace”), which is a substantial Shareholder within the meaning of Part 
XV of the SFO and the controlling shareholder (as defined under the Listing 
Rules).
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Mr. Lau obtained a master degree of business administration in management 
from the Southeastern University in the United States through distance learning 
in February 1996. He was awarded a diploma in management studies jointly 
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly known as The Hong Kong 
Polytechnic) and Hong Kong Management Association in Hong Kong in September 
1994. He was also awarded a higher diploma in building services engineering 
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly known as The Hong Kong 
Polytechnic) in Hong Kong in November 1987. He is also the authorised signatory 
and technical director in the category of registered specialist contractor (sub-
register of ventilation works), and the category of minor works contractor type E 
(Classes II and III) with the Buildings Department for Shun Hing HK.

Mr. Lau has over 35 years in E&M engineering services industry. His experience 
include business management, project management, supervision and execution for 
various E&M engineering services projects.

Mr. Yu Ho Chi ( ), aged 36, was appointed as a non-executive Director on 
27 June 2016 and a member of the Audit Committee on 6 December 2016. He 
was re-designated from a non-executive Director to an executive Director with 
effect from 13 January 2020 and ceased to be a member of the Audit Committee 
then. Mr. Yu Ho Chi is also the director of a subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Yu Ho Chi graduated from the University of Melbourne in Australia with a 
bachelor degree of commerce in 2009. He has been a certified public accountant 
under Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since March 2016. He 
has been also a member of CPA Australia since July 2013.

Mr. Yu Ho Chi worked for a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock 
Exchange from January 2016 to September 2019 and his last position was Deputy 
Head of Investment Department. He was employed by an international accounting 
firm, in the assurance practice and advisory practice between 2010 and 2016.

Mr. Yu Ho Chi is the son of Mr. Yu Cheung Choy, the Chairman, an executive 
Director and a controlling Shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) and the 
brother of Ms. Yu Tsz Wai, a non-executive Director.
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Non-Executive Director

Ms. Yu Tsz Wai (“Ms. Yu”) ( ), aged 39, was appointed as a non-executive 
Director on 11 December 2024. She is also a member of the Nomination 
Committee.

Ms. Yu graduated from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in 
2008 and obtained a bachelor degree of business administration with honours.

Ms. Yu is a seasoned professional with over 10 years of management experience 
across industries, currently serving as the Associate Director at a multinational 
company. She joined the company in 2019 and is responsible for leading strategic 
initiatives that enhance business development and market positioning.

Ms. Yu has contributed her expertise to several prestigious multinational 
organizations since 2008, including L’Oréal, GlaxoSmithKline, and Mead Johnson, 
where she gained valuable insights into global market trends and operational 
excellence. Her diverse background and leadership skills have made her an asset in 
driving innovation and achieving corporate goals in competitive environments.

Ms. Yu is the daughter of Mr. Yu Cheung Choy, the Chairman, an executive 
Director and a controlling Shareholder, and the sister of Mr. Yu Ho Chi, an 
executive Director.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Yim Nam (“Mr. Lam”) ( ), aged 73, was appointed as an 
independent non-executive Director on 6 December 2016. He is also the 
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of each of the Audit 
Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Lam obtained a master degree in business administration from The Chinese 
University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in December 1995. He also obtained 
a bachelor degree of business administration with honours from The Chinese 
University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in July 1980.

Mr. Lam has held several positions in various banks. He has been appointed as an 
independent non-executive director of Bank of Communications (Hong Kong) 
Limited since December 2019. He was an independent director of Shenzhen 
Rural Commercial Bank from May 2012 to May 2018. He was the deputy chief 
executive of Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited from October 2001 to April 
2011, and was responsible for overseeing retail banking business. He also held 
various positions in the group companies of Bank of China Group and Bank of 
China (Hong Kong) Limited, from August 1980 to April 2011, and was responsible 
for managing the business operations of the group companies.
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Mr. Lam has been an honorary adviser of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers 
since 2011. He was a visiting professor of the Vocational Training Council 
from September 2011 to August 2015. He was an adjunct professor in the 
department of finance of The Chinese University of Hong Kong from March 
2011 to 28 February 2014. He was a member of Hong Kong Banking Industry 
Training Advisory Committee from August 2010 to July 2012. He was a director 
of Community Chest of Hong Kong from June 2006 to March 2011. He was a 
member of Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Advisory Committee from April 
2009 to March 2011. He was a member of the Chongqing Committee of Chinese 
People’s Political Consultative Conference (

) from January 2008 to December 2012.

Mr. Lee Wing Kee (“Mr. Lee”) ( ), aged 72, was appointed as an 
independent non-executive Director on 6 December 2016. He is also the 
chairman of the Nomination Committee and member of each of the Audit 
Committee and the Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Lee obtained a bachelor degree of science (engineering) (civil engineering) 
from the Queen Mary College, University of London in the United Kingdom in 
August 1976. He has been a member of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers in 
Hong Kong since August 1983.

Mr. Lee joined Shui On Building Contractors Limited in April 1985 and held 
various positions in the company. Among the various positions he held, he was 
the deputy managing director of SOCAM Asset Management (HK) Limited 
from July 2013 to June 2016. He was the deputy managing director of Shui On 
Construction Company Limited from July 2013 to July 2014 and the executive 
director of Shui On Construction Company Limited from October 2000 to June 
2013. All of the above companies are subsidiaries of SOCAM Development 
Limited, a company whose shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the 
Stock Exchange (stock code: 983).
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Mr. Lee was a member of the disciplinary board panel of the Commissioner 
for Labour from March 2009 to February 2015. He was a member of the 
Committee on Employees’ Compensation from January 2009 to December 2014. 
He was the chairman of Construction Workers Qualification Committee of 
Construction Workers Registration Authority from May 2006 to October 2010. 
He was a council member of Hong Kong Construction Association from April 
2003 to June 2016, the vice president of Hong Kong Construction Association 
from 2005 to 2013 and the chairman of the building committee of Hong Kong 
Construction Association from 2005 to 2013 respectively. He was a member 
of Construction Workers Registration Authority of Environment, Transport 
and Works Bureau from October 2004 to October 2010. He was a member 
of Building Subcommittee of Land and Building Advisory Committee from April 
2003 to March 2007 and a member of Construction Industry Training Authority 
from September 2003 to May 2007. He was the deputy honorary treasurer of 
The Hong Kong Construction Association, Ltd., the chairman of the Training Sub-
committee and the vice chairman of the Training, Health and Safety Committee of 
The Hong Kong Construction Association Ltd. from 2003 to 2005 respectively.

Dr. Law Man Wah (“Dr. Law”) ( ) , aged 73, was appointed as an 
independent non-executive Director on 1 November 2019. He is also the 
chairman of the Audit Committee and member of each of the Nomination 
Committee and the Remuneration Committee.

Dr. Law graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong with a bachelor 
degree of business administration in October 1975 and obtained a master 
degree in business administration from Brunel University (currently known as 
Brunel University London), United Kingdom through distance learning in May 
1992, a master of science degree in finance from City University of Hong Kong in 
November 1995 and a master of business (accounting) from Monash University, 
Australia through distance learning in November 2000. In October 2011, he was 
conferred Doctor of Business Administration by The Hong Kong Polytechnic 
University, major in finance and accounting. Dr. Law also holds various professional 
qualifications, including Certified Management Accountant in United States of 
America, Certified Banker and Certified Financial Management Planner of the 
Hong Kong Institute of Bankers. He is also a member of the Hong Kong Institute 
of Directors and a member of its training committee. Moreover, Dr. Law holds 
the International Certificate in Banking Risk and Regulation from the Global 
Association of Risk Professionals.
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Dr. Law has over 30 years’ experience in the finance industry. He worked for 
Nanyang Commercial Bank Ltd. (“NCB”) from February 1983 to September 
2001 and held various positions in NCB. He was the deputy general manager of 
NCB from March 1992 to September 2001 and was responsible for accounting, 
financial management, information technology, organisation and method, etc. He 
was the director of NCB from August 1994 to April 2007. Dr. Law worked for 
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited from October 2001 to October 2010 where 
his last position held was head of financial management and general manager 
of financial management department. He was involved in the restructuring and 
listing of BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited in 2001 and 2002. During his terms 
of appointment in Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited, he was responsible for 
accounting, financial compliance, budgeting preparation and control, etc. He also 
served as director of BOCI-Prudential Trustee Limited from October 1999 
to March 2009. Currently, Dr. Law is a member of examination moderation 
committee of Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and a specialist of Hong Kong 
Council for Accreditation of Academic & Vocational Qualifications.

Senior management

Mr. Wong Hoi Fung Mars (“Mr. Wong”) ( ), aged 54, is the director of 
Shun Hing HK. He worked as project manager of our Group from 2003 to 2006, 
re-joined our Group as general manager of Shun Hing HK in March 2020 and was 
promoted to director of Shun Hing HK in April 2022. He has over 30 years of 
experience in E&M engineering services industry. He is primarily responsible for 
overseeing and managing project administration and business marketing.

Mr. Wong obtained a master degree of science in building services engineering 
from The University of Hong Kong in December 2003. He obtained a bachelor 
of engineering in mechanical engineering from The University of Hong Kong in 
November 1995.

Mr. Wong has been a chartered engineer of the Engineering Council since June 
2004. He also has been a member of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers 
and the Institution of Mechanical Engineers since June 2004 and April 2004 
respectively.
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Mr. Lee Chun Mo ( ), aged 56, is the project director of Shun Hing HK. 
He joined our Group in March 2002 as project manager and was promoted to 
senior project manager in April 2016 and project director in April 2024. He has 
over 29 years of experience in E&M engineering services industry. He is primarily 
responsible for overseeing and managing project execution, operation and cost 
control matters.

Mr. Lee Chun Mo obtained a bachelor of engineering in building services 
engineering with first class honours from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 
December 2005. He was awarded a higher certificate in mechanical engineering 
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly known as The Hong 
Kong Polytechnic) in November 1991. He is also the authorised signatory in the 
category of Ventilation Works, and the category of minor works contractors Type 
E (Classes I, II and III) with the Buildings Department for Shun Hing HK.

Mr. Chan Ho Kei (“Mr. Chan”) ( ), aged 38, is the financial controller 
of our Group. He joined our Group in March 2016 as a financial controller. He 
is primarily responsible for managing the financial operations and accounting 
functions of our Group.

Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor degree in business administration (major in 
professional accountancy) from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in July 2010.

Mr. Chan has over 14 years of experience in accounting and audit services. Prior 
to joining our Group, he was employed by an international accounting firm as a 
manager in the assurance department, and was responsible for providing audit 
services. He has been a certified public accountant under Hong Kong Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants since January 2014 and a member of The Institute of 
Chartered Accounts in England and Wales since August 2022. He has also been 
an associate member of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute (formerly 
known as The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries) and The Chartered 
Governance Institute since November 2019.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tse Kam Fai ( ), aged 61, was appointed as the Company Secretary on 
9 May 2016. Mr. Tse is a fellow member of The Chartered Governance Institute 
(formerly known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators) 
and The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The 
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries). He is also a member of The 
Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Tse is currently the company secretary of 
several companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He is also an 
executive director of a local professional firm providing regulatory compliance, 
corporate governance and corporate secretarial services to listed and unlisted 
corporations. Mr. Tse has more than 30 years’ solid experience in handling listed 
company secretarial and compliance related matters.
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The Directors are pleased to present the Board the annual report together with 
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are principally 
engaged in provision of E&M engineering services in Hong Kong.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the Year and a discussion on the 
Group’s future business development, and also the Group’s performance during 
the Year are provided in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and 
“Management Discussion and Analysis” respectively from pages 4 to 6 and pages 7 
to 13 of this annual report.

The details of key performance indicators are shown in the section headed 
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 to 13 of this annual report.

The environmental policies and performance, compliance with relevant laws and 
regulations and relationships with employees are discussed in the Environmental, 
Social and Governance Report (“ESG Report”) which is published on the Stock 
Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

There are certain risks involved in the Group’s operations, many of which are 
beyond the Group’s control, including but not limited to those relating to the 
business and the industry. Some of the major risks the Group facing include the 
following:

• the change in overall market condition, both locally and globally, which 
may have adverse impact in the E&M engineering services industry, such as 
unfavourable change in project timeline and fluctuation in raw material and 
equipment;

• the Group operates in a competitive E&M engineering services industry. 
Elevated competition with market participants may lead to lower profit 
margins and loss of market share;
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• The unexpected and unreasonable contra charges deducted by our main 
contractors, which may adversely impact our cashflow and profitability of 
our projects;

• failure by our customers to make remittance of progress payments of our 
projects on time and in full, which may lead to mismatch of cashflows and 
adverse effect on our liquidity position; and

• the potential unfavourable change in project timeline which may adversely 
affect the manpower planning and financial performance of the Group.

Environmental Policy and Performance

The ESG Report of the Company for the Year contained the information required 
under Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules is published on the Stock Exchange’s 
website and the Company’s website.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations

During the Year, as far as the Board and management are aware, there was no 
material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by 
the Group that has a significant impact on the businesses and operation of the 
Group.

Further discussion on the compliance with the relevant laws and regulations are 
also contained in the ESG Report which is published on the Stock Exchange’s 
website and the Company’s website.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

The Group recognises that employees are one of the significant assets of 
the Group. The Group aims to continue establishing a caring environment to 
employees and emphasis the personal development of its employees.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers and suppliers. The 
Group aims to continue providing quality services and consumption experiences 
to its customers and establishing cooperation strategy with its suppliers.

Further discussion on the key relationships with employees, customers and 
suppliers is also contained in the ESG Report which is published on the Stock 
Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

• 

• 

• 

C2
ESG

ESG

ESG



2024-25 43

Directors’ Report

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of 
profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 61.

The Board did not propose any final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 
March 2025.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS AND RECORD DATE

For the purpose of determining the identity of the Shareholders entitled to 
attend and vote at the 2025 AGM, the register of members of the Company will 
be closed from Monday, 25 August 2025 to Friday, 29 August 2025, both days 
inclusive, during the period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be 
eligible to attend and vote at the 2025 AGM, all transfer of shares accompanied by 
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share 
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at 17/
F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration not 
later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 22 August 2025. The record date for attending and 
voting at 2025 AGM is Friday, 29 August 2025.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the Year in the property and equipment of the
Group are set out in Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2025, the Company’s reserves available for distribution to the
Shareholders amounted to approximately HK$80,476,000.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial 
statements. There was no movement in the Company’s share capital during the 
Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association 
or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company 
was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro 
rata basis to existing Shareholders.

RELIEF OF TAXATION

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the 
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the shares of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE 
COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any 
of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ 
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and senior 
management arising out of corporate activities. The permitted indemnity provision 
is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required by section 470 of the 
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies 
Ordinance”) when the Report of the Board of the Directors prepared by the 
Directors is approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies 
Ordinance.

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last 
five financial years is set out on pages 131 to 132 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS

The list of Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of this 
annual report is set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Cheung Choy (Chairman)
Mr. Lau Man Ching (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Yu Ho Chi

Non-executive Director

Ms. Yu Tsz Wai (appointed on 11 December 2024)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Yim Nam
Mr. Lee Wing Kee
Dr. Law Man Wah

In accordance with article 84(1) and 83(3) of the Articles of Association, Mr. Yu 
Ho Chi, Ms. Yu Tsz Wai and Mr. Lam Yim Nam will retire by rotation at the 2025 
AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the 2025 AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Yu Cheung Choy and Mr. Lau Man Ching, being executive Directors, 
has renewed his service agreement with the Company for a term of three years 
commencing on 3 January 2023. Either party has the right to terminate the service 
agreement by giving not less than six months’ written notice to the other party.

Mr. Yu Ho Chi, being an executive Director, has entered into a service agreement 
with the Company for a term of three years commencing on 13 January 2023. 
Either party has the right to terminate the service agreement by giving not less 
than six months’ written notice to the other party.

Ms. Yu Tsz Wai, being a non-executive Director, has entered into a letter of 
appointment with the Company for a term of three years commencing on 11 
December 2024. Either party has the right to terminate the letter of appointment 
by giving not less than three months’ written notice to the other party.

Each of Mr. Lam Yim Nam and Mr. Lee Wing Kee, being independent  
non-executive Directors, has renewed his letter of appointment with the 
Company for a term of three years commencing on 3 January 2023. Either party 
has the right to terminate the letter of appointment by giving not less than three 
months’ written notice to the other party.
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Dr. Law Man Wah, being independent non-executive Director, has entered into a 
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years commencing 
on 1 November 2022. Either party has the right to terminate the letter of 
appointment by giving not less than three months’ written notice to the other 
party.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the 2025 AGM has 
a service contract with the Company which is not determinable within one year 
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group are set out in 
Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements. The Directors consider that 
those related party transactions did not fall under the definition of “connected 
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing 
Rules which are required to comply with any of the reporting, announcement or 
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules. The 
Group has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 
14A of the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive 
Directors a confirmation of independence. The Company considers that all of the 
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to 
any arrangements to enable the Directors or their associates to acquire benefits 
by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of, the Company or in any 
other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, 
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No significant transaction, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to 
the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, 
and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly 
subsisted at 31 March 2025 or at any time during the Year.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance was entered into between the Group, or any of its 
subsidiaries, and any of the controlling Shareholders or any of their subsidiaries 
during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT 
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2025, the interests or short positions of the Directors and chief 
executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of 
the Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of 
the SFO) which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant 
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions 
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or 
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the 
register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, 
are set out below:

Name of Directors Capacity
Long position/ 
Short position

Number of  
shares/ 

underlying  
shares held

 

Approximate  
percentage of  

the issued share  
capital of  

the Company
 
 Notes 

      

Yu Cheung Choy Interests held jointly with another  
 person/Interest of controlled  
 corporations

 
 

Long position 246,000,000 61.50% 1, 3

Lau Man Ching Interests held jointly with another  
 person/Interest of controlled  
 corporations

 
 

Long position 54,000,000 13.50% 2, 3

Notes:

1. Theses 246,000,000 shares of the Company are held through Prosperously Legend, which is wholly-

owned by Mr. Yu Cheung Choy.

2. Theses 54,000,000 shares of the Company are held through Simply Grace, which is wholly-owned by 

Mr. Lau Man Ching.

3. On 7 July 2016, Mr. Yu Cheung Choy and Mr. Lau Man Ching entered into the acting-in-concert 

confirmation, whereby they confirmed that, among other things, since 21 July 2004, they have been 

actively cooperating with one another and acting in concert, with an aim to achieving consensus and 

concerted action on all operating and financing decisions and major affairs relating to each member 

company within the Group.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, or chief executives of the 
Company or their associates had any interests or short positions in any shares, 
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated 
corporations as defined in Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register to be 
kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and 
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as at 31 March 2025.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS 
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2025, the register of substantial shareholders maintained by 
the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO shows that, other than the 
interests of the Directors and the chief executives of the Company, the following 
Shareholders had notified the Company of relevant interests or short position in 
shares and underlying shares of Company as follows:

Name Capacity
Long position/ 
Short position

Number of  
shares/ 

underlying  
shares held

 

Approximate  
percentage of  

the issued share  
capital of  

the Company
 
 Notes 

      

Prosperously Legend Beneficial owner Long position 246,000,000 61.50% 1

Simply Grace Beneficial owner Long position 54,000,000 13.50% 2

Notes:

1. Prosperously Legend is wholly-owned by Mr.  Yu Cheung Choy.

2. Simply Grace is wholly-owned by Mr. Lau Man Ching.

Save as disclosed above, no other parties were recorded in the register of the 
Company required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as having interests 
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as at  
31 March 2025.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct regarding 
securities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all 
Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors had complied with the 
required standard set out in the Model Code during the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) 
pursuant to the written resolutions of the then shareholders passed on 6 
December 2016. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the 
Group to grant options to full time or part time employee, Directors (including 
executive, non-executive or independent non-executive Directors), any supplier, 
any customer, any service provider, any Shareholder, any adviser or consultant of 
the Group as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised as follows:

(1) The total number of Shares which may be allotted and issued upon 
exercise of all options (excluding, for this purpose, options which have 
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and any 
other share option scheme of the Group) to be granted under the Share 
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group must 
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue at the time dealings in 
the Shares first commence on the Stock Exchange, i.e. 40,000,000 Shares, 
unless separate shareholders’ approval has been obtained, and which must 
not exceed 30% of the share capital of the Company in issue from time to 
time.

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available for issue 
under the Share Option Scheme is 40,000,000 Shares, which represents 
10% of the issued Shares as at the date of this report.

(2) The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon 
exercise of the options and the options granted under any other share 
option scheme of the Group (including both exercised or outstanding 
options) to each grantee in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of 
the issued share capital of the Company for the time being.

(1) 

10%
40,000,000

30%

40,000,000

10%

(2) 12

1%
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(3) The exercise price in respect of any option shall be at the discretion of the 
Directors, provided that it shall not be less than the highest of:

(a) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s 
daily quotations sheet for trade in one or more board lots of the 
Shares on the offer date;

(b) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock 
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days 
immediately preceding the offer date; and

(c) the nominal value of the Share.

(4) an option may (and may only) be exercised by the grantee at any time or 
times during the option period (which shall not be more than 10 years 
from the offer date of that option) to be determined and notified by the 
Directors to the grantee.

(5) HK$1.00 shall be paid by the grantee to the Company be way of 
consideration for the grant.

(6) The Board may in its absolute discretion set a minimum period for which 
an option must be held before an option can be exercised.

(7) the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective until the close of 
business on the date falling on the last day of the period of ten (10) years 
after the adoption date, i.e. 6 December 2016.

Other details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the prospectus of the 
Company dated 19 December 2016.

No share option has been granted by the Company under the Share Option 
Scheme since its adoption and up to the date of this annual report.

(3) 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

(4) 

10

(5) 1.00

(6) 

(7) 
(10)
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Mr. Yu Cheung Choy, Mr. Lau Man Ching, Prosperously Legend and Simply Grace 
(together, the “Covenantors”) have entered into the deed of non-competition 
on 6 December 2016 (the “Deed of Non-Competition Undertaking”) in favour 
of the Company (for itself and as trustee for each of its subsidiaries from time to 
time), under which each of the Covenantors has jointly and severally undertaken 
to the Company that he/it shall not, and shall procure that none of their 
respective close associates (other than members of the Group) shall, during the 
period that (a) the Shares remain listed on the Stock Exchange; and (b) either the 
Covenantors and their respective close associates (other than members of the 
Group), individually or jointly, are entitled to exercise, or control the exercise of, 
not less than 30% of the voting power at general meetings of the Company; or (c) 
any of the Covenantors or their respective close associates remains as a director 
of any member of the Group, directly or indirectly, either on their own account, 
in conjunction with, on behalf of, or through any person, firm or company, among 
other things, carry on, participate or be interested, engaged or otherwise involved 
in or acquire or hold (in each case whether as a shareholder, partner, agent or 
otherwise and whether for profit, reward or otherwise) any business that directly 
or indirectly be involved in or any business that directly or indirectly competes, or 
may compete, with the business of the Group or undertaking and any other new 
business which the Group may undertake from time to time after the listing of 
the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

The Covenantors have confirmed to the Company the compliance with the terms 
of Deed of Non-Competition Undertaking during the Year. The independent 
non-executive Directors have reviewed the annual declarations and made 
reasonable enquiry and confirmed the compliance with the terms of Deed of 
Non-Competition Undertaking by the Covenantors during the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as those disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in this 
Directors’ Report and also Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements, no 
other equity-linked agreement was entered into by the Group, or existed during 
the Year.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 March 2025 are set out in Note 
37 to the consolidated financial statements.

Prosperously 
Legend Simply Grace

(a) (b)

30% (c)

35

37



SH GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED Annual Report 2024-2552

Directors’ Report

BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31 March 2025, the Group did not have any bank borrowing (2024: 35.0 
million). As at 31 March 2025, the Group had a facility agreement entered into 
with a bank with a facility limit of HK$150.0 million (2024: HK$150.0 million). The 
Company had made undertakings relating to certain performance obligations of 
the controlling Shareholders, namely Mr. Yu Cheung Choy and Mr. Lau Man Ching, 
pursuant to the facility agreement including the following: (i) Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau 
undertake to maintain as the largest shareholders of the Company directly or 
indirectly; and (ii) Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau shall remain as the chairman or director of 
the Company. The facility agreement remains effective as at the date of this annual 
report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the percentage of revenue attributable to the largest customer 
and the five largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 20.9% 
and 69.8% of the Group’s total revenue respectively.

During the Year, the largest supplier and the five largest suppliers of the Group 
accounted for approximately 4.8% and 13.2% of the total direct costs of the 
Group respectively.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any other Shareholder (which 
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share 
capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration offered to the employees of the Group generally includes 
salaries, medical benefits and bonus. In general, the Group determines salaries 
of its employees based on each employee’s qualifications, position and seniority. 
The Group will review its remuneration package annually. The Group provides 
a defined contribution to the Mandatory Provident Fund as required under the 
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of 
Hong Kong) for the eligible employees in Hong Kong.

On 6 December 2016, the Company had adopted the Share Option Scheme 
under which full time or part time employees, including Directors, of the 
Company and its subsidiaries, might be granted options to subscribe for the 
Company’s ordinary shares.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors for the Year are set out in Note 6 to 
the consolidated financial statements.

3,500

1 5,000
1 5,000

(i)

(ii)

20.9% 69.8%

4.8%
13.2%

5%

485
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within 
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public 
float as required under the Listing Rules during the Year and up to the date of this 
annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee on 6 December 2016 with 
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties 
and roles of the Audit Committee include, but are not limited to, (a) making 
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal 
of the external auditor, approving the remuneration and terms of engagement 
of the external auditor, and any questions of its resignation or dismissal; (b) 
monitoring integrity of financial statements and annual report and accounts,  
half-year report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and reviewing 
significant financial reporting judgements contained in them; and (c) reviewing the 
financial controls, risk management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee currently consists of three independent non-executive 
Directors, namely Dr. Law Man Wah (as chairman), Mr. Lam Yim Nam and Mr. Lee 
Wing Kee. The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited consolidated financial 
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2025.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 were 
audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu whose term of office will expire upon the 
conclusion of the 2025 AGM. A resolution for the re-appointment of Deloitte 
Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company for the subsequent year is to be 
proposed at the 2025 AGM.

 By order of the Board
 SH Group (Holdings) Limited
 Yu Cheung Choy
 Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2025

(a)

(b)

(c)

•

•
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To the Members of SH Group (Holdings) Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SH Group (Holdings) 
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the 
Group”) set out on pages 61 to 130, which comprise the consolidated statement 
of financial position as at 31 March 2025, and the consolidated statement of profit 
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in 
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and 
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy 
information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of 
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2025 and of its 
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year 
then ended in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the 
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been 
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong 
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing 
(“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards 
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities 
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were 
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the 
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, 
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

61 130
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)
Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matters

Revenue recognition for engineering service contracts

We identified the recognition of revenue for engineering service 
contracts as a key audit matter due to the use of judgement and 
estimates by management in determining the stage of completion 
and the budget costs of engineering service contracts in progress.

The contract revenue generated from engineering service 
contracts amounting to HK$608,490,000 was recognised in the 
profit or loss during the year ended 31 March 2025.

608,490,000

Our procedures in relation to the revenue recognition for 
engineering service contracts included:

• Understanding management’s process in estimation of 
the contract revenue, budget cost and determination 
of completion status of the engineering service 
contracts;

• Agreeing the total contract value to the contracts 
and variation orders (if any), agreements or other 
correspondence, on a sample basis;

The Group recognised contract revenue by reference to the stage 
of completion of the contract activity using the input method 
at the end of each reporting period. As set out in note 4 to the 
consolidated financial statements, the management exercises 
judgements in estimating the total contract costs, which are 
prepared by the management on the basis of quotations from 
time to time provided by the major subcontractors, suppliers or 
vendors involved and the experience of the management. Changes 
in estimates or the actual outcome will affect the revenue to be 
recognised.

4

• Testing the contract costs recognised to date by 
checking to supporting documents including the 
certificates issued to the subcontractors, invoices issued 
by suppliers/vendors and/or their correspondences or 
other documents issued before and subsequent to year 
end date to evaluate the progress of the respective 
projects, on a sample basis; and

• Evaluating the reasonableness of percentage of 
completion of engineering service contracts by 
comparing the percentage calculated based on costs 
incurred at the end of the reporting period against that 
calculated based on external surveyors’ certifications, 
and investigating any significant differences identified.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)
Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matters

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract assets

We identified impairment assessment of trade receivables and 
contract assets as a key audit matter due to the significance of 
trade receivables and contract assets to the Group’s consolidated 
financial position and the involvement of subjective judgement and 
management estimates in evaluating the expected credit losses 
(“ECL”) of the Group’s trade receivables and contract assets at the 
end of the reporting period.

 
 

As at 31 March 2025, the Group’s trade receivables and contract 
assets amounted to HK$81,460,000 and HK$136,983,000 
respectively. As disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated financial 
statements, the Group recognised a net impairment loss allowance 
of trade receivables of HK$3,286,000 and recognised a net 
impairment loss allowance of contract assets of HK$2,231,000 
respectively for the year and the Group’s lifetime ECL on trade 
receivables and contract assets amounted to HK$4,798,000 and 
HK$4,008,000 respectively as at 31 March 2025.

 
81,460,000 136,983,000
31  

3,286,000
2,231,000

 
4,798,000 4,008,000

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of trade 
receivables and contract assets included:

• Understanding process on how the management 
estimates the impairment loss allowance for trade 
receivables and contract assets;

• Testing the accuracy of trade receivables ageing analysis 
as at 31 March 2025, on a sample basis, by comparing 
individual items in the analysis with the relevant sales 
invoices;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)
Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matters

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, 
management of the Group estimates the amount of lifetime ECL 
of trade receivables and contract assets individually. The assessment 
is based on the internal credit ratings, ageing, repayment history 
and/or past due status of the respective customers. Estimated 
loss rates are based on historical observed default rates over the 
expected life of the financial instruments and are adjusted for 
forward-looking information.

4  

• Evaluating management’s basis and judgement in 
determining impairment loss allowance on trade 
receivables and contract assets as at 31 March 2025, 
including their identification of credit-impaired balances, 
and the basis of estimated loss rates applied to each 
customer (with reference to the historical default rates 
and forward-looking information including subsequent 
settlement pattern of each customer); and

• Evaluating the disclosures regarding the impairment 
assessment of trade receivables and contract assets in 
note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

31

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The 
other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but 
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other 
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our 
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether 
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to 
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH 
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the 
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance 
with HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure 
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal 
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of 
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible 
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease 
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s 
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S  RESPONSIB IL IT IES  FOR THE AUDIT OF THE 
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated 
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely 
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no 
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any 
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level 
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions 
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S  RESPONSIB IL IT IES  FOR THE AUDIT OF THE 
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement 
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform 
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Group’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
the directors.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going 
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the 
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether 
the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• 

• 

 

• 

• 

 

 

• 
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AUDITOR’S  RESPONSIB IL IT IES  FOR THE AUDIT OF THE 
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

• Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit 
evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business 
units within the group as a basis for forming an opinion on the group 
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and 
review of the audit work performed for purposes of the group audit. We 
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably 
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to 
estimate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we 
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in 
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s 
report is Lee Wing Cheong, Wilfred (practising certificate number: P06770).

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
25 June 2025

•  

 

P06770

•
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 March

2025 2024

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

     

Revenue 5 608,490 876,177
Direct costs (575,520) (859,888)
     

Gross profit 32,970 16,289
Other income 7 3,272 3,471
Other gain (loss) 7 3,358 (4,536)
Net impairment loss recognised  

under expected credit loss model
 

(5,831) (3,221)
Administrative expenses (26,376) (27,127)
Finance costs 8 (1,197) (2,217)
     

Profit (loss) before taxation 9 6,196 (17,341)
Income tax (expense) credit 10 (808) 2,130
     

Profit (loss) and total comprehensive income 
(expense) for the year

 
5,388 (15,211)

     

Earnings (loss) per share
Basic (HK cents) 11 1.3 (3.8)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 March

2025 2024

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

     

Non-current assets
Property and equipment 13 16,520 17,387
Right-of-use assets 14 503 2,350
Deposits 16 2,716 2,919
Debt instruments at amortised cost 18 4,377 6,665
Financial assets at fair value through 

profit or loss
 

19 22,741 19,951
Deferred tax assets 24 7,875 8,683

     

54,732 57,955
     

Current assets
Trade receivables 15 81,460 145,777
Other receivables, deposits 

and prepayments
 

16 4,997 17,045
Contract assets 17 136,983 226,107
Debt instruments at amortised cost 18 2,349 –
Tax recoverable – 3,930
Bank balances and cash 20 97,521 44,634

     

323,310 437,493
     

Current liabilities
Trade and bills payables 21 31,898 105,339
Other payables and accrued charges 22 91,712 106,049
Contract liabilities 17 15,241 14,993
Lease liabilities 23 487 2,322
Provision for onerous contracts 25 3,972 1,613
Bank borrowings 26 – 35,000

     

143,310 265,316
     

Net current assets 180,000 172,177
     

Total assets less current liabilities 234,732 230,132
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 March

2025 2024

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

     

Non-current liabilities
Other provision 25 391 954
Lease liabilities 23 47 272

     

438 1,226
     

Net assets 234,294 228,906
     

Capital and reserves
Share capital 27 4,000 4,000
Reserves 230,294 224,906

     

Equity attributable to owners 
of the Company 234,294 228,906

     

The consolidated financial statements on pages 61 to 130 were approved and 
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 June 2025 and are signed on 
its behalf by:

Yu Cheung Choy Lau Man Ching

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

61 130
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Share  
capital

Share  
premium

Other  
reserve(note)

Retained  
profits Total

 

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

       

At 1 April 2023 4,000 83,223 5,058 151,836 244,117
       

Loss and total comprehensive expense  
for the year

 
– – – (15,211) (15,211)

       

At 31 March 2024  
4,000 83,223 5,058 136,625 228,906

       

Profit and total comprehensive income  
for the year

 
– – – 5,388 5,388

       

At 31 March 2025  
4,000 83,223 5,058 142,013 234,294

       

Note: Other reserve represents the aggregate amount of (i) reserve arising from the group reorganisation, 

which mainly comprises issue of shares by Triumph Legend Ltd (“Triumph Legend”) to acquire 

equity interests in Shun Hing E & M Engineering Limited (“Shun Hing HK”) and issue of shares by 

the Company to acquire equity interests in Triumph Legend and Blissful Choice Limited (“Blissful 

Choice”); and (ii) HK$4,800,000 upon the waiver of amounts due to directors and credited as 

deemed contributions from shareholders.

 (i)

Triumph Legend Ltd Triumph Legend

Triumph Legend Blissful 

Choice Limited Blissful Choice

(ii)

4,800,000



2024-25 65

For the year ended 31 March 2025

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$’000

    

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit (loss) before taxation 6,196 (17,341)
Adjustments for:

Depreciation of property and equipment 1,178 1,290
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 2,273 2,230
Net impairment loss recognised on trade  

receivables and contract assets
 

5,517 1,321
Net impairment loss recognised on other  

receivables 269 1,782
Impairment loss recognised on debt  

instruments at amortised cost
 

45 118
Fair value (gain) loss on financial assets  

at fair value through profit or loss
 

(3,358) 4,536
Bank interest income (1,043) (865)
Interest income on rental deposits (41) (34)
Interest income from debt instruments at 

amortised cost
 

(410) (304)
Dividend income from insurance policy (59) (58)
Dividend income from financial assets 

at fair value through profit or loss
 

(1,051) (1,393)
Finance costs 1,197 2,217

    

Operating cash flows before movements 
in working capital 10,713 (6,501)

Decrease (increase) in trade receivables 61,031 (79,581)
Decrease (increase) in other receivables,  

deposits and prepayments
 

11,710 (6,333)
Decrease in contract assets 86,893 6,935
(Decrease) increase in trade and bills payables (73,441) 33,165
Decrease in other payables and  

accrued charges (14,358) (18,143)
Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities 248 (44,129)
Increase (decrease) in provision for onerous 

contracts 2,359 (4,584)
(Decrease) increase in other provision (563) 646
    

Cash from (used in) operations 84,592 (118,525)
Income tax refunded (paid) 3,930 (867)
    

Net cash from (used in) operating activities 88,522 (119,392)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$’000

    

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Bank interest income received 978 1,727
Interest income received from debt  

instruments at amortised cost
 

378 304
Dividend received from financial assets 

at fair value through profit or loss
 

1,111 1,602
Redemption of debt instruments at  

amortised cost – 218
Purchase of financial assets at fair value  

through profit or loss – (214)
Disposal of financial assets at fair value 

through profit or loss 568 15,918
Purchase of property and equipment (11) (316)
Withdrawal of short term bank deposits – 52,621
Rental deposit refund received 18 –
Payment for rental deposits – (35)
    

Net cash from investing activities 3,042 71,825
    

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest paid (1,197) (2,217)
Repayment of lease liabilities (2,480) (1,944)
New bank borrowings raised – 40,000
Repayments of bank borrowings (35,000) (5,000)
    

Net cash (used in) from financing  
activities (38,677) 30,839

    

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents 52,887 (16,728)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of  
the year 44,634 61,362

    

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year
represented by bank balances and cash 97,521 44,634
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION

SH Group (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated 
and regis tered as an exempted company with l imited l iabi l i ty 
in the Cayman Is lands under the Companies Ac t (as revised) 
of the Cayman Is lands on 9 May 2016. The addresses of the 
Company’s registered office and the principal place of business in 
Hong Kong are Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, 
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and Units 603–606,  
6/F., Tower I, Cheung Sha Wan Plaza, 833 Cheung Sha Wan Road, 
Kowloon, Hong Kong, respectively. Its immediate and ultimate holding 
company is Prosperously Legend Limited (“Prosperously Legend”), which 
was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) and wholly owned 
by Mr. Yu Cheung Choy (“Mr. Yu”), who is also the chairman of the board 
(the “Board”) of directors and executive director of the Company. The 
Company’s shares have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock 
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 3 January 
2017.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal 
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 37.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar 
(“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of the Company and its 
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”).

1. 

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. 
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, 
Cayman Islands

833 6
603–606

Prosperously Legend Limited
Prosperously Legend  

37
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS 
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards that are mandatorily 
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments 
to HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time, which are 
mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual periods beginning on 1 April 
2024 for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or 
Non-current and related amendments to 
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

Amendments to HKAS 7 and 
HKFRS 7

Supplier Finance Arrangements

The application of the amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards in the 
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions 
and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures 
set out in these consolidated financial statements.

2. 
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS 
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

New and amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards in issue but 
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments 
to HKFRS Accounting Standards that have been issued but are not yet 
effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of 
Financial Instruments3

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 Contracts Referencing Nature-dependent Electricity3

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its 
Associate or Joint Venture1

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting Standards – 
Volume 113

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability2

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements4

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027

Except for the new HKFRS Accounting Standard mentioned below, the 
directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all other 
amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards will have no material impact 
on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

2. 

 
9  

7  

 
3

 
9  

7  

 
3

 
10  

28  

 
 

1

  
   

11 3

21  2

 
18

4

1 

2 

3 

4 



SH GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED Annual Report 2024-2570

For the year ended 31 March 2025
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS 
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

HKFRS 18 “Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements” 

HKFRS 18 “Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements”, which 
sets out requirements on presentation and disclosures in financial 
statements, will replace HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements”. 
This new HKFRS Accounting Standard, while carrying forward many of 
the requirements in HKAS 1, introduces new requirements to present 
specified categories and defined subtotals in the statement of profit or 
loss; provide disclosures on management-defined performance measures 
in the notes to the financial statements and improve aggregation and 
disaggregation of information to be disclosed in the financial statements. 
In addition, some HKAS 1 paragraphs have been moved to HKAS 8 
“Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors” and 
HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”. Minor amendments to 
HKAS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows” and HKAS 33 “Earnings per Share” 
are also made.

HKFRS 18, and amendments to other standards, will be effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027, with early application 
permitted. The application of the new standard is expected to affect 
the presentation of the statement of profit or loss and disclosures in 
the future financial statements. The Group is in the process of assessing 
the detailed impact of HKFRS 18 on the Group’s consolidated financial 
statements.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 
INFORMATION

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance 
with HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose 
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements, information is 
considered material if such information is reasonably expected to influence 
decisions made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated financial 
statements include the applicable disclosures required by the Rules 
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the 
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

2. 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements (Cont’d)

The directors of the Company have, at the time of approving the 
consolidated financial statements, a reasonable expectation that the 
Group has adequate resources to continue its operational existence for 
the foreseeable future. Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern 
basis of accounting in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

Material accounting policy information

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements 
of the Company and entities controlled by the Company and its 
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

• has power over the investee;

• is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement 
with the investee; and

• has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and 
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three 
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over 
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. 
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of 
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss 
and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control 
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of 
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s 
accounting policies.

3. 
 

• 

• 
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Material accounting policy information (Cont’d)

All intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows 
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in 
full on consolidation.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Information about the Group’s accounting policies relating to contracts 
with customers is provided in notes 5 and 17.

Leases

The Group as a lessee

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

• the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

• any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, 
less any lease incentives received; and

• any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement 
of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter 
of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on the 
consolidated statement of financial position.

3. 
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Material accounting policy information (Cont’d)

Leases (Cont’d)

The Group as a lessee (Cont’d)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9 and initially 
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are 
considered as additional lease payments and included in the cost of right-
of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and 
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments that are 
unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the 
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement 
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed 
payments) less any lease incentives receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by interest 
accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the 
consolidated statement of financial position.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are tangible assets that are held for use in the 
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes. 
Property and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated 
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of properties 
which includes both leasehold land and building elements, the entire 
consideration is allocated between the leasehold land and the building 
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition.

3. 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Material accounting policy information (Cont’d)

Property and equipment (Cont’d)

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made 
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating 
lease is presented as “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated statement 
of financial position. When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably 
between non-lease building element and undivided interest in the 
underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are classified as property 
and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets over their 
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated 
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the 
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate 
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Impairment on property and equipment and right-of-use assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying 
amounts of its property and equipment and right-of-use assets to 
determine whether there is any indication that these assets have suffered 
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount 
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of 
the impairment loss (if any). The recoverable amount of property and 
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is 
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the Group 
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which 
the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and 
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of 
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is 
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the 
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. 

3. 
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Material accounting policy information (Cont’d)

Deposits in life insurance policies

Deposits in life insurance policies are stated in the consolidated statement 
of financial position at cost adjusted for interest income and service 
charges, less impairment losses, if any.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated 
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or 
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date 
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial 
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by 
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value 
except for trade receivables arising from contracts with customers which 
are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 “Revenue from 
Contracts with Customers”. Transaction costs that are directly attributable 
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other 
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the 
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. 
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets 
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised 
cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income 
and interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest 
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and 
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an 
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other 
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset 
or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net 
carrying amount on initial recognition.

3. 
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Material accounting policy information (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost:

• the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective 
is to collect contractual cash flows; and

• the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows 
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.

(i) Amortised cost and interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method 
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost. For 
financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-
impaired financial assets, interest income is calculated by applying 
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a 
financial asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently 
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that 
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is 
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised 
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting period. If the 
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so 
that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income 
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross 
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the 
reporting period following the determination that the asset is no 
longer credit-impaired.

3. 
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Material accounting policy information (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (Cont’d)

(ii) Financial assets at FVTPL 

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of 
each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses recognised 
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss 
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and 
is included in the “other loss” line item.

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment 
assessment under HKFRS 9 

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit 
loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including trade receivables, debt 
instruments at amortised cost, other receivables and deposits and bank 
balances) and contract assets which are subject to impairment assessment 
under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to 
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default 
events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, 
12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is 
expected to result from default events that are possible within 12 months 
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group’s 
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to 
the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the 
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future 
conditions.

3. 
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Material accounting policy information (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment 
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont’d) 

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables and 
contract assets. The ECL on these assets are assessed individually.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the impairment loss 
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant 
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime 
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is 
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring 
since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly 
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default 
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with 
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the 
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group 
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is 
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and 
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or 
effort.

3. 
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Material accounting policy information (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment 
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont’d) 

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Cont’d)

In particular, the following information is taken into account when 
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

• an actual or expected significant deterioration in the 
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit 
rating;

• significant deterioration in external market indicators of 
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, 
the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

• existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial 
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a 
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt 
obligations;

• an actual or expected significant deterioration in the 
operating results of the debtor; and

• an actual or expected significant adverse change in the 
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the 
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s 
ability to meet its debt obligations.

3. 
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Material accounting policy information (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment 
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont’d) 

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Cont’d)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group 
has rebutted the presumption that the credit risk has increased 
significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments 
are more than 30 days past due as the Group has reasonable and 
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used 
to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit 
risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are 
capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the 
amount becomes past due.

(ii) Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an 
event of default occurs when information developed internally or 
obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely 
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into 
account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group has rebutted the presumption 
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more than 
90 days past due as the Group has reasonable and supportable 
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is 
more appropriate.

3. 
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Material accounting policy information (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment 
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont’d) 

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that 
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of 
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset 
is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following 
events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual 
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having 
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) 
would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter 
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial 
asset because of financial difficulties.

3. 
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Material accounting policy information (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment 
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont’d) 

(iv) Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information 
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and 
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when the 
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered 
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, 
when the amounts are over two years past due, whichever 
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject to 
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery procedures, 
taking into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off 
constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are 
recognised in profit or loss. 

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL 

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of 
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there 
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the 
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical 
data and forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects 
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined 
with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash 
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract 
and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted 
at the effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

3. 
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Material accounting policy information (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment 
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont’d) 

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Cont’d) 

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount 
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in 
which case interest income is calculated based on amortised cost 
of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss 
for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with 
the exception of trade receivables and contract assets where the 
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance 
account.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as 
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of 
the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and 
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in 
the assets of a group entity after deducting all of its liabilities.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities including trade and bills payables, other 
payables and accrued charges and bank borrowings are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

3. 
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Material accounting policy information (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights 
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial 
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset 
to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s 
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable 
is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, 
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. 
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability 
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in 
profit or loss.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) as 
defined contribution plan are recognised as an expense when employees 
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

For long-service payment (“LSP”) obligation, the Group accounts for the 
employer MPF contributions expected to be offset as a deemed employee 
contribution towards the LSP obligation in terms of HKAS 19.93(a) and 
it is measure on a net basis. The estimated amount of future benefit is 
determined after deducting the negative service cost arising from the 
accrued benefits derived from the Group’s MPF contributions that have 
been vested with employees, which are deemed to be contributions from 
the relevant employees.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted amount 
of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees rendered the 
services. All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense 
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in 
the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as wages 
and salaries and annual leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

3. 
 

19.93(a)



2024-25 85

For the year ended 31 March 2025

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Material accounting policy information (Cont’d)

Taxation

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally 
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities 
and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by 
the same taxation authority.

Bank balances and cash

Bank balances and cash presented on the consolidated statement of 
financial position and the consolidated statement of cash flows include:

(a) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand deposits, 
excluding bank balances that are subject to regulatory restrictions 
that result in such balances no longer meeting the definition of 
cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term (generally with 
original maturity of three months or less), highly liquid investments 
that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and 
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash 
equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash 
commitments rather than for investment or other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and 
cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above and 
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management. 

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal 
or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group 
will be required to settle the obligations, and a reliable estimate can be 
made of the amount of the obligation.

3. 
 

(a) 

(b) 
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Material accounting policy information (Cont’d)

Provisions (Cont’d)

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the 
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of 
each reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash 
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the 
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of 
money is material).

Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and 
measured as provisions. An onerous contract is considered to exist 
where the Group has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of 
meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits 
expected to be received from the contract. The unavoidable costs under 
a contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract, which is 
the lower of the net cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties 
arising from failure to fulfil it.

When assessing whether a contract is onerous or loss-making, the Group 
includes costs that relate directly to the contract, consisting of both the 
incremental costs (e.g. direct labour and materials) and an allocation 
of other costs (e.g. an allocation of project overhead costs) that relate 
directly to fulfilling contracts.

Government grants

Government grants related to income that are receivable as compensation 
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving 
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related costs are 
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable. 
Such grants are presented under “other income”.

3. 
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described 
in note 3, the management is required to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are 
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying 
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are 
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing 
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in 
which the estimates is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in 
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both 
current and future periods.

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other 
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting period 
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets within the next financial year.

Engineering service contracts

The Group reviews and revises the estimates of contract revenue, contract 
costs, variation orders and contract claims prepared for each engineering 
service contract as the contract progresses. Budgeted engineering service 
costs are prepared by the management on the basis of quotations from 
time to time provided by the major subcontractors, suppliers or vendors 
involved and the experience of the management. In order to keep the 
budget accurate and up-to-date, the management conducts periodic 
reviews of the budgets of contracts by comparing the budgeted amounts 
to the actual amounts incurred. Such significant estimate may have impact 
on the profit or loss recognised in each period.

4. 

3
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

Engineering service contracts (Cont’d)

Recognised amounts of engineering service contract revenue and related 
receivables reflect the management’s best estimate of each contract’s 
outcome and stage of completion, which are determined on the basis of 
a number of estimates. This includes the assessment of the profitability 
of on-going engineering service contracts. For more complex contracts 
in particular, costs to complete and contract profitability are subject to 
significant estimation uncertainty. Notwithstanding that the management 
frequently reviews and revises the estimates of both the estimated 
revenue and direct costs as the contracts progress, changes in estimates 
or the actual outcome will affect the carrying amounts of contract assets/
liabilities with the corresponding adjustments to future revenue and/or 
direct costs.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group recognised 
contract revenue and contract costs amounted to HK$608,490,000 
and HK$575,520,000 respectively (2024: HK$876,177,000 and 
HK$859,888,000 respectively).

Impairment assessment on trade receivables and contract assets

ECL on trade receivables and contract assets are assessed individually. 
The assessment is based on the internal credit ratings, ageing, repayment 
history and/or past due status of the respective customers. Estimated loss 
rates are based on historical observed default rates over the expected 
life of the financial instruments and contract assets and are adjusted for 
forward-looking information. The loss allowance amount of the credit-
impaired trade receivables and contract assets is measured as the 
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of 
estimated future cash flows with the consideration of expected future 
credit losses.

At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are 
reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information are considered.

As at 31 March 2025, the trade receivables and contract assets 
amounting to HK$81,460,000 and HK$136,983,000 respectively (2024: 
HK$145,777,000 and HK$226,107,000 respectively).

4. 

608,490,000
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

Impairment assessment on trade receivables and contract assets 
(Cont’d)

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The information 
about the ECL, the Group’s trade receivables and contract assets are 
disclosed in notes 31, 15 and 17, respectively.

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue

Revenue represents the fair value of amounts received or receivable 
arising from the engineering service contracts of the Group from external 
customers. The Group’s revenue was solely derived from electrical and 
mechanical engineering (“E&M engineering”) services with the focus on 
the supply, installation and maintenance of mechanical ventilation and  
air-conditioning system (“MVAC system”) and low voltage electrical system 
in Hong Kong during the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024. Such 
services are recognised as a performance obligation satisfied over time as 
the Group creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the 
asset is created or enhanced. The progress towards complete satisfaction 
of a performance obligation is measured based on input method, which 
is to recognise revenue on the basis of the Group’s efforts or inputs to 
the satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the total expected 
inputs to the satisfaction of that performance obligation, that best depict 
the Group’s performance in transferring control of goods or services.

For contracts that contain variable consideration, the Group estimates the 
amount of consideration to which it will be entitled using the most likely 
amount, which better predicts the amount of consideration to which the
Group will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is included in the 
transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that such an 
inclusion will not result in a significant revenue reversal in the future when 
the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is subsequently 
resolved.

4. 

31 15 17

5. 
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Revenue (Cont’d)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates the estimated 
transaction price (including updating its assessment of whether an estimate 
of variable consideration is constrained) to represent faithfully the 
circumstances present at the end of the reporting period and the changes 
in circumstances during the reporting period.

(i) Disaggregation of revenue

For the year ended 31 March

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$’000

    

Type of services
 Supply, installation and  

maintenance of MVAC system
   

446,587 597,052
 Supply, installation and  

maintenance of low voltage  
electrical system

   

161,903 279,125
    

608,490 876,177
    

The revenue recognised for the years ended 31 March 2025 and 
2024 was mainly from private sector projects.

5. 

(i) 
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Revenue (Cont’d)

(ii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance 
obligation for contracts with customers

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance 
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 March 
2025 amounting to approximately HK$638,061,000 (2024: 
HK$883,543,000). Based on the information available to the 
Group at the end of the reporting period, management expects 
that the remaining performance obligations will be recognised as 
revenue during the years ending 31 March 2026 to 2028 (2024: 31 
March 2025 to 2027).

Segment information

For the purpose of resources allocation and performance assessment, the 
executive directors of the Company, being the chief operating decision 
maker, review the overall results and financial position of the Group as 
a whole. Accordingly, the Group has only one single operating segment 
and only entity-wide disclosures, major customers and geographical 
information are presented.

Geographical information

The Group’s revenue are all derived from Hong Kong based on the 
location of services delivered and the Group’s property and equipment 
and right-of-use assets amounting to HK$17,023,000 as at 31 March 2025 
(2024: HK$19,737,000 are all located in Hong Kong by physical location of 
assets.

5. 

(ii) 
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Information about major customers

Revenue attributed from customers that accounted for 10% or more of 
the Group’s total revenue during the years is as follows:

For the year ended 31 March

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$’000

    

Customer A A 127,139 224,458
Customer B B 98,722 N/A *
Customer C C 72,685 145,750
Customer D D 68,826 116,242

    

* Revenue from the relevant customers was less than 10% of the Group’s total revenue for 

the respective period.

6. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

During the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024, the emoluments 
paid or payable by the entities now comprising the Group to the 
directors and chief executive of the Company were as follows:

Directors’
fees 

Salaries 
and 

other 
benefits

Discretionary
bonus

Retirement
benefit
scheme

contributions Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

       

For the year ended  
31 March 2025

  

Executive Directors
Yu Cheung Choy (note i) i – 2,710 110 18 2,838
Lau Man Ching (notes i and iii) i iii – 2,266 92 18 2,376
Yu Ho Chi (note i) i – 1,686 68 18 1,772

Non-Executive Director
Yu Tsz Wai (note ii & iv) ii iv 48 – – – 48

Independent  
Non-Executive Directors

Lam Yim Nam (note ii) ii 156 – – – 156
Law Man Wah (note ii) ii 156 – – – 156
Lee Wing Kee (note ii) ii 156 – – – 156
       

516 6,662 270 54 7,502
       

5. 

10%

* 

10%

6. 

(a) 
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6. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Cont’d) 

Directors’
fees 

Salaries 
and 

other 
benefits

Discretionary
bonus

Retirement
benefit
scheme

contributions Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

       

For the year ended  
31 March 2024

  

Executive Directors
Yu Cheung Choy (note i) i – 2,808 117 18 2,943
Lau Man Ching (notes i and iii) i iii – 2,348 147 18 2,513
Yu Ho Chi (note i) i – 1,747 109 18 1,874

Independent  
Non-Executive Directors

Lam Yim Nam (note ii) ii 156 – – – 156
Law Man Wah (note ii) ii 156 – – – 156
Lee Wing Kee (note ii) ii 156 – – – 156
       

468 6,903 373 54 7,798
       

Notes:

(i) The emoluments of Mr. Yu, Mr. Lau Man Ching (“Mr. Lau”), who is the chief 
executive officer and executive director of the Company, and Mr. Yu Ho Chi 
shown above were for their services in connection with the management of the 
affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries undertaking.

(ii) The emoluments of non-executive director and independent non-executive 
directors shown above were for their services as directors of the Company.

(iii) Mr. Lau is also the chief executive officer of the Company and his remuneration 
disclosed above included these services rendered by him as chief executive 
officer.

(iv) Ms. Yu Tsz Wai was appointed as non-executive director with effect from  
11 December 2024.

Dur ing the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024,  no 
remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors of the 
Company as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or 
as compensation for loss of office. No directors have waived any 
remuneration during both years.

6. 

(a) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 
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6. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals included three (2024: three) 
directors of the Company whose emoluments are included in the 
disclosures in (a) above for the year ended 31 March 2025. The 
emoluments of the remaining two (2024: two) individuals for the 
year ended 31 March 2025 were as follows:

For the year ended 31 March

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$’000

    

Salaries and other benefits 3,112 3,331
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 36 36
    

3,148 3,367
    

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

For the year ended 31 March

2025 2024

Number of individuals

   

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 1,500,000 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 2,000,000 1 1
    

During the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024, no emoluments 
were paid by the Group to the five highest paid individuals as an 
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation 
for loss of office.

6. 

(b) 

(a)
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7. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER LOSS

For the year ended 31 March

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$’000

    

Other income:
Bank interest income 1,043 865
Interest income from debt instruments at  

amortised cost 410 304
Dividend income from insurance policy 59 58
Dividend income from financial assets 

at FVTPL
 

1,051 1,393
Government grants 274 177
Sundry income 435 674
    

3,272 3,471
    

Other gain (loss):
Fair value gain (loss) on financial assets at  

FVTPL
  

3,358 (4,536)
    

8. FINANCE COSTS

For the year ended 31 March

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$’000

    

Interest on bank borrowings 1,080 2,010
Interest on lease liabilities 117 207
    

1,197 2,217
    

7. 

8. 
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9. PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION

For the year ended 31 March

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$’000

    

Profit (loss) before taxation has been arrived at  
after charging:

 
 

Auditor’s remuneration 1,750 1,840
Depreciation of property and equipment 1,178 1,290
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 2,273 2,230

Directors’ emoluments (note 6) 6 7,502 7,798
Other staff costs:

Salaries and other benefits 79,711 95,381
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 2,720 3,272

Total staff costs 89,933 106,451
    

10. INCOME TAX (EXPENSE) CREDIT

For the year ended 31 March

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$’000

    

Hong Kong Profits Tax:
Deferred taxation (note 24) 24 (808) 2,130
    

9. 

10. 
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10. INCOME TAX (EXPENSE) CREDIT (Cont’d)

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of Hong Kong Profits Tax, 
the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed 
at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The 
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates 
regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been recognised in the 
consolidated financial statements as the Group did not generate any 
assessable profit in Hong Kong for both years.

The income tax (expense) credit for the years can be reconciled to the 
profit (loss) before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or 
loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

For the year ended 31 March

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$’000

    

Profit (loss) before taxation 6,196 (17,341)
    

Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate  
of 16.5%

16.5%
(1,022) 2,861

Tax effect of income not taxable for  
tax purpose 988 427

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for  
tax purpose (556) (992)

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised (218) (166)
    

Income tax (expense) credit for the year (808) 2,130
    

10. 

200
8.25%

200 16.5%

16.5%
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11. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings (loss) per share is based on the following 
data:

For the year ended 31 March

2025 2024

    

Profit (loss) for the purpose of calculating  
basic earnings (loss) per share:

 

Profit (loss) for the year attributable to  
owners of the Company (HK$’000)

 
5,388 (15,211)

    

Number of shares:
Number of ordinary shares for the purpose of 

calculating basic earnings (loss) per share
 

400,000,000 400,000,000
    

No diluted earnings (loss) per share for the years ended 31 March 2025 
and 2024 was presented as there was no dilutive potential ordinary share 
in issue for both years.

12. DIVIDENDS

During the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024, no dividend was 
declared or paid to the shareholders of the Company. The Board did not 
propose any final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March 2025.

11. 

12. 
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13. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Leasehold
land and
buildings

Leasehold
improvements

Furniture
and fixtures

Computer
and office

equipment Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

       

COST
At 1 April 2023 24,088 2,811 1,807 5,219 33,925
Additions – – 12 304 316
       

At 31 March 2024 24,088 2,811 1,819 5,523 34,241
Additions – – – 311 311
       

At 31 March 2025 24,088 2,811 1,819 5,834 34,552
       

ACCUMULATED  
DEPRECIATION

At 1 April 2023 6,991 2,500 1,515 4,558 15,564
Provided for the year 705 98 93 394 1,290
       

At 31 March 2024 7,696 2,598 1,608 4,952 16,854
Provided for the year 705 62 77 334 1,178
       

At 31 March 2025 8,401 2,660 1,685 5,286 18,032
       

CARRYING AMOUNTS
At 31 March 2025 15,687 151 134 548 16,520
       

At 31 March 2024 16,392 213 211 571 17,387
       

The above items of property and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the term of the lease of 
  34 years
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the term of 
  the lease or 5 years

Furniture and fixtures 20%
Computer and office equipment 20%

13. 

 34

 5
  
  

 20%
 20%
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14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
Leased properties

HK$’000

   

Carrying amount
As at 31 March 2025 503
As at 31 March 2024 2,350

   

Depreciation
For the year ended  

31 March 2025 2,273
For the year ended  

31 March 2024 2,230
   

For the year ended 31 March

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$’000

    

Total cash outflow for leases 2,597 2,151

Additions/modification to right-of-use assets 426 3,981
    

As at 31 March 2025 and 2024, the Group has no outstanding short-term 
lease commitments.

For both years, the Group leases various office premises and workshops 
for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of 1 to 
2 years (2024: 1 to 2 years). Lease terms are negotiated on an individual 
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. In 
determining the lease term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable 
period, the Group applies the definition of a contract and determines the 
period for which the contract is enforceable.

Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, lease liabilities of HK$534,000 (2024: HK$2,594,000) are 
recognised with related right-of-use assets of HK$503,000 (2024: 
HK$2,350,000) as at 31 March 2025. The lease agreements do not impose 
any covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets that are 
held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing 
purposes.

14. 
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15. TRADE RECEIVABLES

As at 31 March

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$’000

    

Trade receivables 86,258 147,289
Less: Impairment loss allowance (4,798) (1,512)
    

81,460 145,777
    

As at 1 April 2023, trade receivables from contracts with customers 
amounted to HK$67,150,000.

The Group grants credit terms of 30 days to its customers from the date 
of invoices on progress billings of contract works. An aged analysis of the 
trade receivables net of impairment loss allowance presented based on 
the invoice date at the end of each reporting period is as follows:

As at 31 March

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$’000

    

Within 30 days 30 63,325 136,557
31–60 days 31 60 16,007 5,544
61–90 days 61 90 122 2,671
Over 90 days 90 2,006 1,005
    

81,460 145,777
    

15. 

67,150,000

30
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15. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

As at 31 March 2025, included in the Group’s trade receivables balance 
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$18,135,000 (2024: 
HK$9,220,000) which are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the 
past due balances, HK$2,006,000 (2024: HK$1,005,000) has been past 
due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default as these balances 
are either from debtors with long term business relationship or with 
expected subsequent settlement. The Group does not hold any collateral 
over these balances.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables are set out in note 
31.

16. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
As at 31 March

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$’000

    

Rental and other deposits 854 840
Deposits in life insurance policies (note) 1,993 1,934
Deposits paid for acquisition of property and  

equipment – 279
Other receivables from subcontractors 30 10,628
Other receivables 231 350
Prepayments and others 4,605 5,933
    

Total 7,713 19,964
    

Presented as non-current assets 2,716 2,919
Presented as current assets 4,997 17,045
    

Total 7,713 19,964
    

Note: The amount represented the deposits placed with an insurance company for the life 

insurance policies of two directors of the Company. The Group can, at any time, receive 

cash back based on the cash value of the policies (“Cash Value”) at the date of withdrawal, 

which is equal to the sum of tabular cash value shown in the relevant policy schedules 

with any dividend accumulations and the cash values of any paid-up additions, less any 

indebtedness. The carrying amount of the life insurance policies approximates the Cash 

Value of the insurance policies.

15. 
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16. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Cont’d) 

Details of impairment assessment of other receivables and deposits are 
set out in note 31.

17. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$’000

    

Contract assets 140,991 227,884
Less: Impairment loss allowance (4,008) (1,777)
    

136,983 226,107
    

Contract liabilities 15,241 14,993
    

As at 1 April 2023, contract assets and contract liabilities amounted to 
HK$233,409,000 and HK$59,122,000 respectively.

The Group has rights to considerations from customers for the provision 
of E&M engineering services. Contract assets arise when the Group has 
right to consideration for completion of E&M engineering services and 
not yet billed under the relevant contracts, and their right is conditional 
on factors other than passage of time. Any amount previously recognised 
as a contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables when such right 
becomes unconditional other than the passage of time. Remaining rights 
and performance obligations in a particular contract is accounted for and 
presented on a net basis, as either a contract asset or a contract liability. If 
the progress payment exceeds the revenue recognised to date under the 
input method, the Group recognises a contract liability for the difference.

16. 
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17. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Cont’d)

The Group’s engineering service contracts include payment schedules 
which require stage payments over the contract period once certain 
specified milestones based on surveyors’ assessment are reached.

Retention money is unsecured and interest-free and represented the 
monies withheld by customers of contract works recoverable after 
the completion of defect liability period of the relevant contracts or in 
accordance with the terms specified in the relevant contracts, usually being 
1 to 2 years from the date of completion of respective E&M engineering 
services projects. Normally the retention money will be accumulated up to 
5% or 10% of the contract value.

The Group classifies these contract assets as current because the Group 
expects to realise them in its normal operating cycle.

Details of impairment assessment of contract assets are set out in note 31.

For the contract liabilities as at 31 March 2024, HK$13,228,000 were 
recognised as revenue to profit or loss during the year ended 31 March 
2025.

For the contract liabilities as at 1 April 2023, HK$53,074,000 were 
recognised as revenue to profit or loss during the year ended 31 March 
2024.

The decrease in contract assets in current year is resulted from the 
decrease in the Group’s right to consideration for completion of E&M 
engineering services but not yet billed under the relevant contracts as at 
31 March 2025.

The increase in contract liabilities in current year is resulted from 
increase in certain contracts’ progress payments received exceeding the 
corresponding customers’ contract assets as of 31 March 2025.

17. 
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18. DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT AMORTISED COST

As at 31 March

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$’000

    

Investment in listed bonds with fixed interest  
rate ranging from 1.00% to 7.25%  
(2024: 1.00% to 7.25%) per annum and  
maturity date ranging from August 2025 
to September 2032 (2024: August 2025 to 
September 2032)

1.00% 7.25% 
1.00% 7.25%

2,536 2,475
Investment in listed perpetual capital  

securities with fixed interest of 5.25% (note)
5.25%   

4,190 4,190
    

6,726 6,665
    

Analysed as:
Current 2,349 –
Non-current 4,377 6,665

    

6,726 6,665
    

Note: There is no maturity of the securities and the payments of distribution can be deferred at 

the discretion of the issuer, and there is no limit as to the number of times of deferral of 

distribution. Any distribution so deferred shall bear interest as if it constituted the principal 

of the securities. The perpetual capital securities are callable by issuer. Because the 

contractual cash flows of listed perpetual capital securities represent solely the payments 

of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, the investment in listed 

perpetual capital securities is measured at amortised cost.

Details of impairment assessment of debt instruments at amortised cost 
are set out in note 31.

18. 
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19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR 
LOSS

Financial assets mandatorily measured at FVTPL:

As at 31 March

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$’000

    

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 10,407 6,758
Unlisted funds in overseas 12,334 13,193
    

22,741 19,951
    

20. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and bank 
deposits carry at variable interest rates with an original maturity of three 
months or less. As at 31 March 2025, the variable interest rates ranged 
from 0.01% to 4.07% (2024: 0.88% to 4.23%) per annum.

21. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

The credit period on purchases and subcontracting of contract work 
services ranges from 30 to 60 days generally. The following is an aged 
analysis of trade payables presented based on the invoice date and bills 
payables presented based on the date of issuance of the bills at the end of 
each reporting period:

As at 31 March

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$’000

    

Trade payables:
Within 30 days 30 7,558 32,600
31–60 days 31 60 20,834 54,185
61–90 days 61 90 1,862 15,541
Over 90 days 90 – 418

    

30,254 102,744
    

Bills payables:
Within 30 days 30 1,644 2,595

    

31,898 105,339
    

19.  

20. 

0.01% 4.07%
0.88% 4.23%
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22. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES

As at 31 March

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$’000

    

Accrued staff costs 8,726 10,857
Accrued contract costs 20,495 32,231
Other accrued charges 1,430 1,776
Retention payables (note) 61,061 61,185
    

91,712 106,049
    

Note: Retention payables to subcontractors of contract works are interest-free and payable by 

the Group after the completion of defect liability period of the relevant contracts or in 

accordance with the terms specified in the relevant contracts, ranging from 1 to 2 years 

from the completion date of the respective engineering service contracts.

23. LEASE LIABILITIES

As at 31 March

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$’000

    

Lease liabilities payable:
Within one year 487 2,322
Within a period of more than one year but  

 not exceeding two years 47 272
    

534 2,594
Less: Amount due for settlement with  

12 months shown  
under current liabilities

  
12

(487) (2,322)
    

Amount due for settlement after 12 months  
shown under non-current liabilities

12   
47 272

    

The incremental borrowing rates applied to lease liabilities range from 
6.11% to 7.38% (2024: 4.93% to 7.38%).

22. 

 

1 2

23. 

6.11% 7.38%
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24. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following is the deferred tax assets recognised and movements 
thereon during the current and prior years.

Accelerated
accounting

depreciation
ECL

provision

Provision for
onerous 

contracts Tax losses Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

       

At 1 April 2023 55 324 1,023 5,151 6,553
Credit(charge) to profit or loss 

(note 10)
10

7 169 (757) 2,711 2,130
       

At 1 April 2024 62 493 266 7,862 8,683
Charge to profit or loss (note 10) 10 (4) (473) (211) (120) (808)
       

At 31 March 2025 58 20 55 7,742 7,875
       

At 31 March 2025, the Group has unused tax losses of approximately 
HK$60,609,000 (2024: HK$60,014,000) available for offset against 
future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of 
approximately HK$46,924,000 (2024: HK$47,653,000) of such losses. 
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining 
approximately HK$13,685,000 (2024: HK$12,361,000) due to the 
unpredictability of future profit streams. All unrecognised tax losses are 
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

24. 
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25. PROVISION FOR ONEROUS CONTRACTS AND OTHER 
PROVISION

The provision for onerous contracts relates to certain contracts with 
customers under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligation 
exceed the economic benefits to be received due to anticipated increase 
in certain production costs. During the year ended 31 March 2025, there 
are additions of HK$3,758,000 and utilisation of HK$1,399,000 provision 
for onerous contracts.

The Group provides for the probable future long service payments 
expected to be made to employees under the Hong Kong Employment 
Ordinance. The provision represents the management’s best estimate of 
probable future payments which have been earned by the employees from 
their services to the group entities up to the end of each reporting period. 
During the year ended 31 March 2025, there is reversal of HK$563,000 
other provision for long-services payments.

26. BANK BORROWINGS

As at 31 March

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$’000

    

Bank loans – unsecured  – – 35,000
    

The bank loans that contain a repayment on 
demand clause (shown under current  
liabilities) but repayable as follows:
Within one year – 35,000

    

All the bank borrowings as at 31 March 2024 were variable-rate 
borrowings carry interest at Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate 
(“HIBOR”).

The range of effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted 
interest rates) on the Group’s borrowings was 6.68% to 7.53% per annum 
as at 31 March 2024.

25.  

3,758,000 1,399,000

563,000

26. 
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26. BANK BORROWINGS (Cont’d)

As at 31 March 2025 and 2024, the Group had a facility agreement 
entered into with a bank with certain obligations of Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau 
pursuant to such facility agreement including the following: (i) Mr. Yu and 
Mr. Lau undertake to maintain as the largest shareholders of the Company 
directly or indirectly; and (ii) Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau shall remain as the 
chairman or director of the Company.

27. SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Company are as follows:

Amount
Number 
of shares HK$ HK$’000

     

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 0.01
Authorised:
At 1 April 2023, 31 March 2024  

and 2025
  

  
10,000,000,000 100,000,000 100,000

     

Issued and fully paid:
At 1 April 2023, 31 March 2024  

and 2025
  

  
400,000,000 4,000,000 4,000

     

There was no movement in the Company’s share capital during both years.

26. 
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(ii)

27. 



2024-25 111

For the year ended 31 March 2025

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

28. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2025 and 2024 the Group pledged the following assets 
to secure the certain banking facilities including performance guarantees 
issued by a bank.

The carrying amounts of the assets pledged are as follows:

As at 31 March

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$’000

    

Leasehold land and buildings 15,687 16,392
    

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, 
the Group does not have any material related party transactions for both 
years.

Compensation to key management personnel

Compensation to key management personnel of the Group which 
represent the directors of the Company is set out in note 6(a).

30. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be 
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to owners 
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity of the Group, 
comprising share capital and reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure regularly 
taking into account the cost of capital and the risk associated with the 
capital. The Group will balance its overall capital structure through 
issuance of new shares and raising new borrowings or the repayment of 
the existing borrowings.

28. 

29. 
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

As at 31 March

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$’000

    

Financial assets
Financial assets at FVTPL 22,741 19,951
Financial assets at amortised cost 188,815 210,828

    

Financial liabilities
Amortised cost 120,983 243,477

    

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s financial instruments include financial assets at FVTPL, debt 
instruments at amortised cost, trade receivables, other receivables and 
deposits, bank balances, trade and bills payables, other payables and 
accrued charges, lease liabilities and bank borrowings. Details of these 
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated 
with these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these 
risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors these 
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely 
and effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Currency risk
The group entities have financial assets denominated in currencies 
other than their respective functional currencies. Consequently, 
the Group is exposed to risks that the exchange rate of functional 
currencies relative to other currencies may change in a manner 
that has an adverse effect on the value of the position of the 
Group’s assets denominated in foreign currencies.

The exposure primarily arises from the investments in listed bond, 
unlisted funds in overseas and bank balances denominated in 
United States dollars (“US$”).

31. 

(i) 
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d)

(i) Currency risk (Cont’d)
The carry ing amounts of the Group’s foreign currency 
denominated monetary assets at the end of the reporting period 
are as follows:

As at 31 March

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$’000

    

US$ 15,484 15,979
    

Under the pegged exchange rate system, the financial impact in 
exchange fluctuation between HK$ and US$ is considered to be 
immaterial and therefore no sensitivity analysis has been prepared.

(ii) Interest rate risk
The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk primarily relates to the 
variable-rate bank balances as disclosed in note 20 as at 31 March 
2025 and 2024, and variable-rate bank borrowings as disclosed in 
note 26 as at 31 March 2024. The Group’s fair value interest rate 
risk primarily relates to fixed-rate bond investments and lease 
liabilities as at 31 March 2025 and 2024 as disclosed in notes 18 
and 23 respectively.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to mitigate 
its exposure associated with interest rate risk. However, the 
management of the Group monitors interest rate exposure and 
will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should the 
need arise.

31. 
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d)

(ii) Interest rate risk (Cont’d)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the 
exposure to interest rate risk on variable-rate bank borrowings. 
The sensitivity analysis is prepared assuming the variable-rate bank 
borrowings outstanding at the end of the reporting period were 
outstanding for the whole year. No sensitivity analysis is provided 
on bank balances as the management of the Group considers that 
the interest rate fluctuation on bank balances is minimal. 

A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used in the sensitivity 
analysis, which represents management’s assessment of the 
reasonably possible change in interest rates. If the interest rate had 
been 50 basis point higher/lower and all other variables were held 
constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for the year ended 31 March 
2024 would increase/decrease by HK$146,000.

31. 
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d)

(iii) Other price risk
The Group is exposed to price risk through its investments in 
equity securities and unlisted funds measured at FVTPL. For 
equity securities quoted in the Stock Exchange and unlisted funds 
measured at FVTPL, the management manages this exposure by 
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risks.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on the 
exposure to price risk at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective instruments had been 10% higher/
lower, the post-tax profit for the year ended 31 March 2025 
would increase/decrease by HK$1,899,000 as a result of the 
changes in fair value of equity securities measured at FVTPL (2024: 
post-tax loss for the year ended would decrease/increase by 
HK$1,666,000).

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a 
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge the obligations 
by counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the respective 
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of 
financial position at the end of each reporting period.

The management adopts a policy on providing credit facilities to new 
customers. A credit investigation, including assessment based on financial 
information of the new customers and credit search, is required. The 
level of credit granted must not exceed a predetermined level set by the 
management. Credit evaluation is performed on a regular basis.

31. 
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont’d)

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from contracts with 
customers

In order to minimise the credit risk on trade receivables and contract 
assets, management of the Group has delegated a team responsible 
for monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to 
recover overdue debts. In addition, management of the Group reviews the 
recoverable amount of each individual debt at the end of each reporting 
period to ensure that adequate impairment loss allowance are made for 
irrecoverable amounts on trade receivable and contract assets. In this 
regard, management of the Group considers that the credit risk on trade 
receivables and contract assets is significantly reduced. The Group applies 
simplified approach on trade receivables and contract assets to provide for 
ECL. ECL on trade receivables and contract assets are assessed individually. 
The assessment is based on the internal credit ratings, ageing, repayment 
history, past due status and forward-looking information including 
subsequent settlement pattern of the respective customers. As part of the 
Group’s credit risk management, the Group applied internal credit rating 
for its customers and applying the estimated loss rate ranging from 0.00% 
to 2.29% (2024: 0.00% to 4.58%) over the gross carrying amounts.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, there was a debtor who went 
into liquidation process. During the year ended 31 March 2025, there 
is another debtor who went into liquidation process. The gross amount 
of credit-impaired trade receivables and contract assets of with these 
debtors are HK$4,741,000 (2024: HK$822,000) and HK$5,746,000 (2024: 
HK$2,630,000) respectively as at 31 March 2025.

31. 
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont’d)

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from contracts with 
customers (Cont’d)

The Group has concentration of credit risks with exposure limited to 
certain customers. The Group’s largest debtor contributed approximately 
28% (2024: 36%) of the Group’s trade receivables and 29% (2024: 21%) 
of the Group’s contract assets, respectively. The Group’s five largest 
debtors contributed approximately 81% (2024: 81%) of the Group’s 
trade receivables and 80% (2024: 73%) of the Group’s contract assets, 
respectively.

Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the management of the Group makes 
periodic collective assessment as well as individual assessment on the 
recoverability of other receivables based on historical settlement records, 
past experience, and also available reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information. For the year ended 31 March 2024, impairment 
loss of HK$1,782,000 was recognised by applying the estimated loss rate 
ranging from 0.00% to 15.01% over the gross carrying amounts. For 
the year ended 31 March 2025, there is reversal of impairment loss of 
HK$1,306,000 for not credit-impaired other receivables and recognition 
of impairment loss of HK$1,575,000 for credit-impaired other receivables 
because these receivables are past due over one year and there is no 
development concerning the collectability of these receviables. Credit-
impaired other receivables of HK$754,000 has been written off during the 
year ended 31 March 2025 because a debtor has ceased its business.

31. 
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont’d)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

The Group’s debt instruments at amortised cost mainly comprise listed 
bonds issued by companies listed in the Stock Exchange. The Group 
determines whether the debt instruments held by the Group have 
suffered from significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition by 
comparing the credit rating and other qualitative benchmarks that affect 
the credit quality of the debt instruments at initial recognition and at the 
end of the reporting period.

As at 31 March 2025 and 2024, as an issuer of a debt instrument has 
suffered from significant financial difficulty, that debt instrument held 
by the Group is therefore considered as credit-impaired. The Group 
estimates the probability of default and the loss given default of the debt 
instrument with reference to relevant default studies published by the 
credit rating agencies after taking into account forward-looking information 
available without undue cost or effort. In view of the above, the Group’s 
management considers the ECL allowance on the debt instruments is 
adequate at 31 March 2025 and 2024.

Bank balances

As at 31 March 2025 and 2024 the credit risk on bank balances of 
the Group is limited because the counterparties are banks with good 
reputation and credit ratings and no history of default in the past and no 
impairment loss allowance for bank balances was recognised. The Group 
has limited exposure to any single financial institution.

31. 
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont’d)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group’s financial 
assets at amortised cost and contract assets, which are subject to ECL 
assessment:

As at 31 March

2025 2024

Notes
External credit

rating
Internal credit

rating
12m or

lifetime ECL
Gross carrying

amount
Gross carrying

amount
12

HK$’000 HK$’000

        

Financial assets at amortised costs
Trade receivables 15 N/A Note 1 Lifetime ECL 81,517 146,467

1

15 N/A Note 1 Lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired)

4,741 822

1

Other receivables and deposits 16 N/A Note 2 12m ECL 3,108 15,534
2 12

N/A Note 2 12m ECL
(credit-impaired)

1,297 –

2 12

Debt instruments at amortised cost 18 Baa1 N/A 12m ECL 6,523 6,523
Baal 12

(2024: A3 to Baa1)
A3 Baal

N/A Note 3 Lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired)

1,839 1,733

3

Bank balances 20 Aa2 - A3 N/A 12m ECL 97,521 44,634
Aa2 A3 12

(2024: Aa2-A3)

Aa2 A3
Other items
Contract assets 17 N/A Note 1 Lifetime ECL 135,245 225,254

1

17 N/A Note 1 Lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired)

5,746 2,630

1

31. 
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont’d)
Notes:

1. For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has applied the simplified approach 

in HKFRS 9 to measure the impairment loss allowance at lifetime ECL. ECL on trade 

receivables and contract assets are assessed individually. The assessment is based on the 

internal credit ratings, ageing, repayment history, past due status and forward-looking 

information including subsequent settlement pattern of the respective customers.

2. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group mainly uses past due 

information to assess whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition.

3. For credit-impaired debt instruments at amortised cost, the Group assessed the lifetime 

ECL with reference to relevant default studies published by the credit rating agencies after 

taking into account forward-looking information available without undue cost or effort.

The following table shows the movement in 12m ECL and lifetime ECL 
that has been recognised for trade receivables, contract assets, other 
receivables and debt instruments at amortised cost.

31. 
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont’d)

Lifetime ECL
(not credit-impaired)

12m ECL 
(not credit-

impaired)
12 Lifetime ECL

(credit-impaired)

   

Trade
receivables

Contract
assets

Other 
receivables

Trade
receivables

Contract
assets

Other 
receivables

Debt
instruments

at amortised
cost Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

          

As at 1 April 2023 558 1,410 – – – – 1,473 3,441
Changes due to financial instruments 

recognised as at 1 April:
 

 Impairment losses reversed  (482) (1,295) – – – – – (1,777)
 Impairment losses recognised  281 19 – 37 903 – 118 1,358
 Transfer to credit-impaired  (1) (75) – 1 75 – – –

New financial assets originated  
or purchased 334 456 1,782 784 284 – – 3,640

          

As at 31 March 2024 690 515 1,782 822 1,262 – 1,591 6,662
          

Changes due to financial instruments 
recognised as at 1 April:

 

 Impairment losses reversed  (687) (497) (1,306) – – – (49) (2,539)
 Impairment losses recognised  – – – 236 1,376 1,575 – 3,187
 Transfer to credit-impaired  – – (476) – – 476 – –
 Write-off  – – – – – (754) – (754)

New financial assets originated  
or purchased 54 43 – 3,683 1,309 – 94 5,183

          

As at 31 March 2025 57 61 – 4,741 3,947 1,297 1,636 11,739
          

31. 
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont’d)

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is information 
indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there is no 
realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under 
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the trade 
receivables are over two years past due, whichever occurs earlier.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains 
a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by management 
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of unexpected 
fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity 
for its non-derivative financial liabilities and lease liabilities. The table has 
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities 
and lease liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can 
be required to pay. The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial 
liabilities and lease liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates. To 
the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is 
derived from interest rate at the end of each reporting period.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

31. 
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)

Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

Weighted
average

effective
interest rate

Within
1 year 1–2 years 

Total
undiscounted

cash flows

Total
carrying
amount

% HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

       

As at 31 March 2025
Trade and bills payables N/A 31,898 – 31,898 31,898
Other payables and  

accrued charges
  

N/A 89,085 – 89,085 89,085
Lease liabilities 6.88 499 48 547 534
       

121,482 48 121,530 121,517
       

Weighted
average

effective
interest rate

Within
1 year 1–2 years 

Total
undiscounted

cash flows

Total
carrying
amount

% HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

       

As at 31 March 2024
Trade and bills payables N/A 105,339 – 105,339 105,339
Other payables and  

accrued charges
  

N/A 103,138 – 103,138 103,138
Bank borrowings 7.12 35,089 – 35,089 35,000
Lease liabilities 7.19 2,427 275 2,702 2,594

       

245,993 275 246,268 246,071
       

31. 
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are measured at fair value on 
a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair value at the end 
of each reporting period. The following table gives information about 
how the fair values of these financial assets are determined (in particular, 
the valuation technique(s) and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair 
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised 
(Levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value 
measurements is observable.

Fair value as at

Financial instruments 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Fair value
hierarchy

Valuation
technique(s)
and key input(s)

     

Financial assets at fair value
 through profit or loss

Equity securities
listed in Hong Kong:

HK$10,407,000

Equity securities
listed in Hong Kong:

HK$6,758,000

Level 1 Quoted bid prices 
 in an active market

10,407,000 6,758,000
Unlisted funds 

in overseas:
HK$12,334,000

Unlisted funds 
in overseas:

HK$13,193,000

Level 2 Quoted prices from 
 financial institutions

12,334,000 13,193,000

There is no transfers among Level 1 and Level 2 during both periods.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at 
fair value on a recurring basis

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of 
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the 
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

31. 
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32. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund 
Schemes Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes 
Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those 
of the Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee. Under 
the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to 
make contributions to the MPF Scheme at rates specified in the rules. The 
only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make 
the required contributions. Except for voluntary contribution, no forfeited 
contribution under the MPF Scheme is available to reduce the contribution 
payable in future years. The cap of contribution amount is HK$1,500 per 
employee per month.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from the MPF 
Scheme recognised in profit or loss represent contributions paid or 
payable to the fund by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the MPF 
Scheme.

The contributions paid and payable to the schemes by the Group are 
disclosed in notes 6(a) and 9.

Pursuant to the Employment Ordinance, Chapter 57, the Group has the 
obligation to pay Long Service Payment (“LSP”) to qualifying employees in 
Hong Kong upon retirement, subject to a minimum of 5 years employment 
period, based on this formula: Last monthly wages (before termination of 
employment) × 2/3 × Years of service. Last monthly wages are capped at 
HK$22,500 while the amount of long service payment shall not exceed 
HK$390,000. This obligation is accounted for as a post-employment 
defined benefit plan.

Furthermore, the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance 
passed in 1995 permits the Group to utilise the Group’s mandatory MPF 
contributions, plus/minus any positive/negative returns thereof (collectively, 
the “Eligible Offset Amount”), for the purpose of offsetting LSP payable to 
an employee (the “Offsetting Arrangement”). The LSP obligation, if any, is 
presented on a net basis.

32. 

1,500

6(a) 9
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5
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32. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES (Cont’d)

The Employment & Retirement Schemes Legislation (Offsetting 
Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022 was gazetted on 17 
June 2022, which will eventually abolish the Offsetting Arrangement. 
The Amendment will come into effect prospectively from a date to be 
determined by the Hong Kong SAR Government, which is expected to 
be in 2025 (the “Transition Date”). Under the amended Ordinance, the 
Eligible Offset Amount after the Transition Date can only be applied to 
offset the pre-Transition Date LSP obligation but no longer eligible to 
offset the post-Transition Date LSP obligation. Furthermore, the LSP 
obligations before the Transition Date will be grandfathered and calculated 
based on the Last monthly wages immediately preceding the Transition 
Date.

33. PERFORMANCE GUARANTEES

As at 31 March 2025, performance guarantees of HK$155,230,000 
(2024: HK$145,243,000) were given by banks in favour of the Group’s 
customers as security for the due performance and observance of the 
Group’s obligations under the contracts entered into between the Group 
and its customers. If the Group fails to provide satisfactory performance 
to its customers to whom performance guarantees have been given, 
such customers may demand the banks to pay to them the sum or  
sum stipulated in such demand. The Group will become liable to 
compensate such banks accordingly. The performance guarantees will 
be released upon completion of the contract works. The performance 
guarantees were granted under the banking facilities with details as set out 
in note 26.

At the end of each reporting period, as represented by the directors of 
the Company, they do not consider it is probable that a claim will be made 
against the Group.

32. 

33. 
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34. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$’000

    

Capital expenditure in respect of the  
acquisition of property and equipment  
contracted for but not provided in the  
consolidated financial statements

  
  

– 21
    

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 6 December 2016, the Company conditionally adopted a share 
option scheme (the “Scheme”) pursuant to a resolution passed by its 
shareholders on the same date, for the primary purpose of providing 
incentives or rewards to eligible employees (whether full time or part 
time, including any executive director), the non-executive directors 
(including independent non-executive directors) of the Company, any 
subsidiary or any entity in which any member of the Group holds any 
equity interest and other eligible participants as specified under the 
Scheme. The adoption of the Scheme became unconditional upon the 
listing of the Company on 3 January 2017. The Scheme has a life of 10 
years.

No share option has been granted by the Company since the adoption of 
the Scheme.

34. 
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36. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$’000

    

Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries 23 23
Loan to a subsidiary 18,000 18,000
Debt instruments at amortised cost 4,377 6,665
Financial assets at fair value through  

profit or loss
  

22,690 19,899
    

45,090 44,587
    

Current assets
Other receivables, deposits  

and prepayments
  

198 267
Amounts due from subsidiaries 31,771 33,601
Debt instruments at amortised cost 2,349 –
Bank balances and cash 5,614 2,873

    

39,932 36,741
    

Current liability
Other payables and accrued charges 546 278

    

Net current assets 39,386 36,463
    

Net assets 84,476 81,050
    

Capital and reserves
Share capital 4,000 4,000
Reserves (note) 80,476 77,050

    

Equity attributable to owners of the Company 84,476 81,050
    

36. 
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36. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 
POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d)
Note:

Movement in the Company’s reserves

Share
premium

Other
reserve

Retained
profits

(accumulated 
losses) Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

      

At 1 April 2023 83,223 23 (2,270) 80,976

Loss and total comprehensive expense  
for the year – – (3,926) (3,926)

      

At 31 March 2024 83,223 23 (6,196) 77,050
      

Profit and total comprehensive income  
for the year – – 3,426 3,426

      

At 31 March 2025 83,223 23 (2,770) 80,476
      

37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at the end of each reporting 
period are as follows:

Equity interest attributable 
to the Group as at

Issued and fully 31 March
Place paid share capital 2025 2024

Name of subsidiary of incorporation Place of operation Principal activities

       

Triumph Legend* The BVI Hong Kong US$1,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Triumph Legend* 1,000 100% 100%

       

Blissful Choice* The BVI Hong Kong US$2,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Blissful Choice* 2,000 100% 100%

       

Shun Hing HK# Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$4,800,000 100% 100% Provision of E&M  
 engineering services

# 4,800,000 100% 100%
       

Golden Light Engineering  
 Limited#

Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$250,000 100% 100% Inactive

# 250,000 100% 100%
       

* Subsidiaries directly held by the Company
# Subsidiaries indirectly held by the Company

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the 
reporting period or at any time during both years.

36. 
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38. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from 
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities 
arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or 
future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement 
of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

Lease 
liabilities

Bank 
borrowings Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

     

At 1 April 2023 630 – 630
Financing cash flows (2,151) 32,990 30,839
New leases entered and leases modified 3,908 – 3,908
Finance costs 207 2,010 2,217

     

At 31 March 2024 2,594 35,000 37,594
     

Financing cash flows (2,597) (36,080) (38,677)
New leases entered and leases modified 420 – 420
Finance costs 117 1,080 1,197

     

At 31 March 2025 534 – 534
     

38.  
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Summary of Financial Information

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the five 
financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements is 
set out below.

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

       

Revenue 707,590 753,327 954,255 876,177 608,490
       

Gross profit 61,398 45,599 8,656 16,289 32,970
       

Profit (loss) for the year 44,134 11,733 (11,002) (15,211) 5,388
       

Earnings (loss) per share
 Basic (HK cents)  11.0 2.9 (2.8) (3.8) 1.3
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CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

As at 31 March

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

       

ASSETS
Non-current assets 65,148 75,772 75,085 57,955 54,732
Current assets 447,231 432,341 431,655 437,493 323,310

       

Total assets 512,379 508,113 506,740 495,448 378,042
       

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 215,053 216,312 262,267 265,316 143,310
Non-current liabilities 2,623 965 356 1,226 438

       

Total liabilities 217,676 217,277 262,623 266,542 143,748
       

EQUITY
Total equity attributable to  

owners of the Company
  

294,703 290,836 244,117 228,906 234,294
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